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Responsibility And Access

Responsible Minister
Minister for Tourism
Bob Kucera APM JP MLA

Accountable Authority
Rottnest Island Authority

Access
Administration
Rottnest Island Authority
Level 1, E Shed, Victoria Quay
FREMANTLE  WA  6160

Postal Address
Rottnest Island Authority
PO Box 693
FREMANTLE  WA  6959

Contact
Phone: (08) 9432 9300
Facsimile: (08) 9432 9301
Website: www.rottnestisland.com
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Letter of Transmittal

To Bob Kucera APM JP MLA
Minister for Tourism

In accordance with the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 (Section 66), we hereby submit for
your information and presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report of the Rottnest Island Authority for
the financial year ending 30 June 2004.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Administration
and Audit Act 1985.

Laurie O’Meara
Acting Chairman

31 August 2004

Mimi Secco
Member

31 August 2004

Enabling Act
The Rottnest Island Authority was established under the Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987.
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About The Rottnest Island Authority

Rottnest Island
Rottnest Island is one of Western Australia’s favourite holiday experiences. Low-key, nature based
holidays are offered in an environment with unique marine and terrestrial features and important
Aboriginal and colonial heritage.

The Island, an A-Class Reserve, is 18 kilometres from the Port of Fremantle and is managed by a
statutory body, the Rottnest Island Authority (the Authority).

Approximately 1900 hectares, containing 200 hectares of ‘settlement’ area and 200 hectares of salt
lakes and swamps, make up the terrestrial area of the Rottnest Island Reserve. The marine portion of
the Reserve consists of approximately 3800 hectares of sea surrounding the Island. 

The Island was declared an A-Class Reserve in 1917. The purpose of the Rottnest Island Reserve was
amended in June 2003 under the Land Administration Act 1997 from ‘public recreation’ to ‘for the
purposes of the Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987’ in recognition of the conservation values of the
natural environment and the rich heritage of Rottnest Island. 

Powers of the Authority
The Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987 (the Act) gives the Authority the power to control and manage
the Island for the following purposes:

» To provide and operate recreational and holiday facilities on the Island;
» To protect the flora and fauna of the Island; and
» To maintain and protect the natural environment and the man-made resources of the Island and, to

the extent that the Authority’s resources allow, repair its natural environment.

The Act creates the Rottnest Island Authority as a statutory body.

Organisational Structure
The Authority consists of a Chairman and 5 other members appointed by the Governor on the
nomination of the Minister for Tourism. The Minister appoints a Deputy Chairman. 

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for providing strategic leadership in the achievement of the
Authority’s objectives and to manage, subject to the control of the Board of the Authority, the day to
day operations of the Authority. 

This year, an annual average of 106 staff supported the Chief Executive Officer. Staffing levels vary in
response to seasonal requirements, with this year’s staffing levels affected by the Authority resuming
management of the Rottnest Island Hotel. The operations of the organisation are managed under 3
directorates as outlined in the following chart.
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Strategic Plan
Vision
The Authority’s vision Rottnest: Forever Magic reflects the community’s wish that the unique Rottnest
Island experience be preserved for future generations of Western Australians.

Mission
Rottnest Island provides holidays for Western Australians and other visitors while sustaining the Island’s
natural environment and unique heritage.

Goals
The Authority has 3 goals:

» Rottnest Island provides a unique holiday experience that is accessible to Western Australians and
other visitors;

» Rottnest Island’s environment and heritage be conserved and enhanced as a model of sustainability;
and

» The Authority conducts its business responsibly and in a way that is sustainable and beneficial to the
Island.

Corporate Objectives
Outcome for Government
The Rottnest Island Authority has 1 outcome for Government, “Provision of accessible recreational and
holiday facilities, appropriate to the Island environment, for the benefit of Western Australian families
and other visitors, and the conservation of natural and cultural values”.

The success of this objective is measured against 2 outputs that reflect the core activities of the
Authority and align with the Government’s Strategic Planning Framework (SPF). 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr Paolo Amaranti

(appointed June 2004)
Marketing &

Communications

DIRECTOR
Conservation & Planning

Ms R Shadbolt (acting)
» Environment
» Planning
» Projects
» Heritage
» Risk Management
» Ranger Services
» Education &

Interpretation Services

DIRECTOR
Tourist Services
Mr Peter Purves

(Appointed October 2001)
» Visitor Services
» Accommodation Services
» Mooring Services

DIRECTOR
Business Services

Ms C Shannon
(Appointed March 2002)
» Contract Management
» Lease Management
» Finance
» Human Resources
» Information Services



Output One - Provision of Services to Visitors (SPF: People and Communities)
The Authority provides and operates accessible recreational and holiday facilities on Rottnest Island with
particular regard to the needs of people normally resident in Western Australia who visit or holiday on
the Island as a family group.

Output Two - Conservation of the Natural and Cultural Environment (SPF: The Environment)
The Authority maintains, protects, restores and interprets the Island’s natural and cultural environment.

Meeting the Government’s Strategic Planning Framework
The Authority ensures it conducts its business responsibly meeting the SPF goal of “Governance” as
required under the guidelines. In particular the Authority is cognisant of the State Sustainability
Strategy. Since the release of the Strategy in September 2003 the Authority has established the timeline
and processes relevant to those actions for which the Authority is responsible, these include ensuring:

» Sustainability principles and practices are incorporated into the on-going implementation of the
Rottnest Island Management Plan 2003-2008, including the review of the Rottnest Island Authority
Act 1987;

» The Authority creates a ‘sustainability action plan’ by December 2004; and
» The resource entitled “Consulting Citizens” is used in all future consultation programs.

Financial Overview
The year has been challenging for the Authority. Since the last annual report the Authority has
undergone considerable review by the Office of the Auditor General and the subsequent Rottnest Island
Taskforce. While the Authority’s operations have been reviewed, there was confirmation of a new Chief
Executive Officer towards the end of the year and the departure of the Authority Chairman. The
reporting year of 2004/2005 will see a refocus and refining of the way the Authority manages its
operations which will result in an improved position for the Authority over the next few years.

The full year financial result for 2003/2004 reflects that the Authority did not meet the budgeted
projection of a net loss of $1.382 million and posted a net loss from ordinary activities of $2.7 million.
There were a number of factors that contributed to this variance. 

The Authority did not proceed with the construction of a wind-turbine. Accordingly, the Authority did
not progress an application for $1 million in Commonwealth grant funding through the Australian
Greenhouse Office as indicated in the 2003/2004 Financial Estimates. The Taskforce report, which was
released on 31 May 2004, recommended that the Authority proceed with a revised wind turbine
project, which includes the installation of 2 low load diesel generators, to improve fuel savings. The
State Government has provided funding of $2.6 million towards this project, as part of a $20 million
funding program, and it will proceed in 2004/2005. The Authority will apply to the Australian
Greenhouse Office for grant funding to be made available in the 2004/2005 financial year.

Also affecting the year-end result was the resumption of direct operational management control of the
Rottnest Island Hotel. Effective 1 April 2004, the Authority became directly responsible for all aspects
of the Hotel’s operations, including staff. As anticipated by the Authority, resuming the business at the
start of the low season would result in the Authority incurring an operating loss during 2003/2004.
Indications are to date that over a full financial year however, the Hotel will return a profit to the
Authority. The Authority is proceeding with a range of improvements to the premises, the majority of
which address issues of visitor safety and management of risk. A consequence of this work will be the
improved amenity of the premises, which is expected to generate a better return from the business.
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Overall, revenue generated by core tourist services functions such as the provision of holiday
accommodation, tours and facilities and the collection of admission fees including those associated with
boating, while 1.5% greater than last year, were lower than budget by 2.9%.

Summary of Financial Performance 2003/2004

2000/01 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04 
($’000) ($’000) ($’000) ($’000)

Total revenue from 19,348 20,307 20,620 20,231
ordinary activities

Total expenses from 22,052 24,580 24,230 22,946
ordinary activities

Profit/Loss from (2,704) (4,273) (3,610) (2,715)
ordinary activities 
before grants and subsidies 
from Government 
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The Year’s Highlights and Achievements
The year was characterised by the very public recognition of challenges faced by the Rottnest Island
Authority in managing for a sustainable future and the significant hope for revival provided through a
$20 million State Government injection to the Island toward the end of the reporting year.

In conjunction with planning for the Island’s long term future, the Authority finalised a number of
planned initiatives and responded to important issues arising during the year. It also continued to receive
accolades for its attractions and staff.1

Key highlights for the Authority this year include:

» A commitment by the State Government of $20 million over the next 6 years towards a program of
repairs and renovations that supports the findings of the Rottnest Island Taskforce that some aspects
of the Island’s infrastructure require immediate attention.

» The commencement of a comprehensive unit refurbishment program at Fays Bay and Longreach at
a cost of $3.7 million. Changes to the units will provide a new quality of accommodation on the
Island including soft furnishings, microwaves, flyscreens, overhead fans and an exciting new range
of colour schemes.

» Conservation works undertaken to Cottages F and G between May and October 2003 at a cost of
$320,000. Works included the reconstruction of the timber verandahs, the removal of asbestos roof
coverings, the limewashing of the building and improvements to the interior based on traditional
colour schemes and design.

» Rottnest Island Authority named as a finalist in the Heritage Council of Western Australia’s annual
awards in March 2004. The Authority received recognition for its commitment to conserving,
interpreting and promoting places of cultural heritage significance.

» Rottnest Island Authority named as a finalist in the Major Tourist Attraction category of the Western
Australian Tourism Awards.

» The introduction of a new trial mooring system seeking to expand the number of users on a more
equitable basis. A thorough assessment of the trial system will be made prior to any further decision
on moorings management.

» The completion of a Strategic Waste and Resource Management Plan which provides a wholistic
strategy taking into account extensive preliminary research which includes waste audits and broad
consultation resulting in a plan tailored to the Island’s needs.

» The launch of ‘Marine 1’, a purpose built boat for the use of Rangers in undertaking their duties and
when supporting other groups working around the Island. The boat was built and fitted in Western
Australia at a cost of $154,000.

» Establishment of the Honorary Bay Ranger program to improve communications between the
Authority and the Rottnest Island boating community. Eight bay rangers received training over the
2003/2004 summer.

» The delivery of the new self-propelled railcar, the “Captain Hussey”, named after Brigadier Frank
Hussey who was involved with the Army’s construction of the railway to the Oliver Hill and Bickley
Bay Batteries. The railcar was built with volunteer assistance and delivered at a cost of $171,500.

» The continued modernisation and diversification of the Authority’s Bike Hire fleet with the purchase
of $100,000 worth of new bikes. A total of 504 bikes to suit various ages and skills complement the
400 new bikes bought the previous year.
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» Construction of a water access ramp, based on the principles of ‘universal access’ in North Thomson
Bay at a cost of $66,000. The ramp is suited to a wide range of people with varying degrees of
mobility impairment.

» A dedicated wildlife station established and fitted out for the treatment and observation of sick and
injured wildlife. The station was built with extensive assistance of volunteers. 

» An improved approach to quokka management with the development of policy and guidelines for
the management of compromised quokkas. A new quokka brochure and poster to inform visitors
about the Island’s favourite mammal was also produced raising awareness of the need for minimising
human contact.

» Hosting of this year’s New Year’s Eve celebrations saw a more peaceful and family orientated night
than in previous years. New strategies and limits were introduced to ensure celebrations were held
according to the resources and facilities available on the night.

» Introducing new strategies for the school leavers’ celebrations, including providing an area in
Geordie Bay and Longreach exclusive to their needs, which resulted in the most positive feedback
from leavers and parents to-date.

» The launch of an innovative ‘quality-range’ of exclusive Rottnest Island merchandise. The
merchandise was well received in its first year, achieving approximately 20% of overall visitor centre
retail sales.

» Celebration of 2004 as the “Year of the Built Environment” with the launch of a new booklet: “A
Guide to the Historic Buildings of the Thomson Bay Settlement”, with an accompanying exhibition
and open inspections of heritage buildings for members of the public.

» Discovery of an ancient stone tool on Rottnest Island in July 2003. Experts from the Australian
National University are dating the tool. Preliminary estimates suggest it might be at least 50,000
years old.

» Installation of a new beach access at Lady Edeline Beach (Narrowneck) reducing beach erosion along
this beach system.

» Development of a nutrient testing program for marine waters including the use of a donated Zodiac
vessel and $5000 donated through Coastwest.

» The inaugural meeting of the new Rottnest Island Cultural Heritage Advisory Committee which aims
to provide expert advice on the appropriate management of the Island’s valuable heritage assets.

» Education Officer, Jodi Ingram being a finalist in the Sir David Brand Young Achiever Medal in the
Western Australian Tourism Awards.

» The resumption of management of the Rottnest Island Hotel on 1 April 2004 to enable the Authority
to assess the value of the business to the Island.
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Chairman’s Statement
The year under review was a watershed – a time when the
business sustainability of Rottnest was fully recognised as a
priority and a time when decisive action was taken to remedy
the situation.

It became clear that the limited revenue stream was becoming
increasingly insufficient to meet the wide range of capital,
maintenance and operational costs demanded. The cost of
maintaining the physical environment, both terrestrial and
marine, with the preservation of priceless heritage buildings
had for some time threatened the viability of the operation.

To this was added the high cost of providing infrastructure such
as water, power and sewerage disposal. These are not services
usually required of a local authority or a holiday destination. I
see the Rottnest Island Authority as a combination of these two entities. The lack of economy of scale and
the punitive transportation costs from the mainland combine to raise water and electricity charges to levels
which affect all Island businesses including the core business of accommodation.

This issue was highlighted by the Auditor General in his report entitled “Turning the Tide”. In the summary
he observed that “Cost growth has increased at more than double the rate of revenue growth”.

The subsequent Rottnest Island Taskforce’s “Open for Business” blueprint addressed this issue in several
ways. The report suggested the development of a more client focused and outward looking style of
management. The report also recommended utilisation and integration with other government agencies.
As an example of this, the Island will acquire the status of a national park with its non-settlement areas
managed by the Department of Conservation and Land Management.

The Board of the Authority welcomed the report of the Taskforce noting that a number of proposals in
the Authority’s “Rottnest Island Management Plan 2003-2008” were given prominence. The decision of
the Government to back the Taskforce recommendations with additional funding of $20 million was seen
by the Board as a clear indication that the Government was dedicated to the long-term sustainability of
the Island.

The challenge has been clearly put to the Authority to use this considerable assistance to repair the
degradation of the Island’s utilities, heritage and accommodation assets as the base for establishing long
term financial viability.

The Rottnest Island Authority, its Board and staff accept this challenge and place on record deep
appreciation to the Government for this critical and timely injection of funds.

Several initiatives of the Board were placed on hold when the Taskforce was set up to carry out its overview
of the infrastructure. The decision not to progress the redevelopment of the liquor outlet known locally as
the Quokka Arms attracted considerable media attention. This decision was deemed appropriate as the
revenue from this operation was considered essential to assist the viability of the new accommodation
facility proposed by the Taskforce.

The high level of media interest underlines the continuing interest and affection the Western Australian
public has for Rottnest. It has been said in jest but with possibly a degree of accuracy that there are 1.4
million West Australians who have firm ideas on how to manage Rottnest. This interest was tangibly
expressed by the Government when during the State’s 175th Anniversary year it declared Rottnest Island
a “Heritage Icon”.

9



The increasing number of boat owners capable of making the trip to Rottnest has put the system of
mooring licence management under stress. A trial system involving an extended “Authorised User”
concept was introduced during the season to broaden the availability of mooring access. This has proven
to be very workable and could well be adopted as the future policy.

Another innovative trial was the training of volunteer boating persons as Honorary Bay Rangers. Using
their knowledge of the regulations and policies these volunteers act as information officers to the boating
community to ensure that conflict and environmental or mooring abuse is minimised.

The Board introduced new approaches to the management of the increasing stress on staff and facilities
during school leavers celebrations and New Years Eve. Whilst not wishing to dampen the fun of these
events it is essential that the comfort, safety and enjoyment of families and tourists to the Island does not
suffer. There has been general agreement that these initiatives achieved their goal.

Rottnest Island has a national and to some extent an international profile along with other tourist areas like
Margaret River and Broome. Because of its pristine environment and sympathetic physical development,
Rottnest is naturally featured in most of the State’s destination marketing. The result is a regular stream of
day tripping tourists bringing much needed revenue to support the business of the Island.

The Taskforce recognised the need for a new accommodation style to cater for these visitors, to hold them
longer and to broaden their experience as they help with the Island’s sustainability. This accommodation
would, of course, appeal equally to Western Australians seeking a last minute, fully catered and serviced
“getaway”. The appeal of such accommodation would desirably spread into the quieter winter months.
Focus on this requirement will become clearer as the infrastructure improvements, recommended by the
Taskforce, are implemented.

Interest in volunteering on Rottnest Island continues at a high level. The voluntary groups attract a range
of skills and abilities, which have been essential to the delivery of diverse and appealing activities and the
Authority’s sincere thanks is extended to them.

I wish to thank my predecessor, Ms Jenny Archibald, who joined the Authority as Chairman in November
2001 overseeing a number of developments on the Island. Ms Archibald was responsible for ensuring the
production of the current Management Plan. Ms Archibald resigned as Chairman in March 2004.

The Authority welcomed Paolo Amaranti as the new Chief Executive Officer in June. Mr Amaranti took
over from Ms Lesley Smith who acted as Chief Executive Officer from August 2002 until March 2004. I
take this opportunity to thank Ms Smith for her contribution during her time with the Authority.

In conclusion it should be recognised that regular feedback from the Island faithful indicates that great
holidays continue to happen on Rottnest. It is most important that perspective be maintained and that in
carrying out “improvements” we do not lose sight of why Rottnest is magic to Western Australians. Its
ethos must be preserved at all costs.

The valuable financial support provided by the Government will be used to ensure that such special
holidays remain available for future generations – that Rottnest remains – Open for Business.

Laurie O’Meara
Acting Chairman
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report
Rottnest Island has reached a critical milestone in its progress
towards a fully sustainable future. 

My appointment as Chief Executive Officer on 8 June 2004
followed a period of 8 weeks in an acting capacity. I am
delighted to have been selected to take on the challenge of
restoring Rottnest Island to its former status as Western
Australia’s premier holiday destination and to contribute
towards a vibrant and sustainable future for the Island.

Like many Western Australians, the Authority wants the
untouched beauty of the Rottnest environment, including
simple pleasures like fishing off the beaches and jetties to
remain unspoiled. Around half a million people visit Rottnest
each year – and for many it is their first holiday destination
offshore. Western Australians have taken Rottnest to their
hearts, and are very protective of “their” Island. Rottnest Island’s significance to Western Australians was
formally recognised this year when the State Government announced it as a heritage icon as part of the
State’s 175th anniversary celebrations.

The Island’s world-renowned heritage buildings, pristine beaches and crystal waters must be preserved
for our children and our children’s children. There is a wealth of history on Rottnest Island – indigenous,
military, colonial, maritime, recreational and social. In particular, indigenous history needs to be
recognised, valued and respected.

In turning around the structural and financial problems faced by Rottnest in recent years, The Authority
will be seeking to improve services and facilities for people already visiting the Island and to attract new
visitors - especially those Western Australians who have never considered Rottnest for their holiday
experience. Progress towards commercial viability will not however, come at the expense of the special
“ethos” that makes Rottnest Island unique. 

Rottnest Island’s importance to Western Australian tourism is considerable, based on the comparison to
the visitor numbers of major tourism destinations in other states. For example, in 2003 Lake Claire
National Park (Cradle Mountain) in Tasmania recorded 381,000 visitors, Fraser Island in Queensland
received 217,000 visitors and Kakadu National Park in the Northern Territory 184,000 visitors. In
2003/2004 Rottnest Island had around 500,000 visitors. 

The Authority’s Performance
In November 2003, the Auditor General’s Report: “Turning the Tide: The Business Sustainability of the
Rottnest Island Authority” was tabled in Parliament. The Auditor General stated in his report that the
Authority was “increasingly less able” to fulfil the broad range of obligations required of it under the
Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987.

In response, the Minister for Tourism, Bob Kucera APM JP MLA, brought together a Taskforce, chaired
by Mr Alex Allan. The Taskforce was established to examine the financial sustainability of the Island and
draw up a prioritised infrastructure plan consistent with sound management, commercial principles and
environmental sustainability.

The Taskforce released its report Open for Business: A sustainable future for Rottnest in May 2004 and
made a total of 103 recommendations – 101 of which have been accepted by the State Government.
The State Government has also committed $20.142 million to the Island to maintain and restore the
Island’s infrastructure and improve facilities for visitors. A key priority for the Authority, arising out of the
Taskforce report, is the development of a more commercial approach to managing its operations.
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Based on the recommendations of the Rottnest Island Taskforce, work has begun on putting the
framework in place to ensure the Island is managed on a commercially sustainable basis. Expenditure
priorities and necessary commercial practices have been identified by the Taskforce and endorsed by the
Government, thereby providing the elements to form the future direction of the Rottnest Island
Authority.

In addition, rectifying a qualification from the Auditor General on the Authority’s financial statements in
recent years has seen some progress through improved internal auditing processes. Initiatives in
2004/2005 will address the issue further and restore confidence in the revenue collection system.

The Authority was also subject to some negative impact through other ongoing operational activities.
Programming errors by the Authority’s reservations service provider have incorrectly caused a number of
ballot applications to be rejected for the summer ballot. The Authority has ensured that the program
was re-run to include all applicants.

During the moorings renewal process held in September 2003 the Authority recognised that it needed
to improve its administrative performance in the handling of licences, authorised users and annual
admissions fees due to the impact of the trial mooring system. The need to improve the resourcing of
the process has now been addressed.

Other difficult issues to be addressed by the Authority have included managing the transferring and
integration of Kingstown’s manual data to the electronic booking system; and the ability of the Authority
to report accurately from the accommodation booking and billing system. Some accounting issues still
need to be resolved and the Authority’s business methodology will be reviewed.

While there was some impact to the Island’s visitors the Authority worked hard to establish equity and
probity in rectifying these situations. The Authority’s staff has faced a challenging organisational
environment in the course of 2 external reviews.

A general increase in the level of customer satisfaction for services and facilities offered on Rottnest
Island was countered with a general downturn in business activity during 2003/2004. This was evident
in the decline in visitor numbers across the 12 months and a lower take-up of services such as tours and
accommodation nights in some categories.

Financial Situation
The actual net loss for the 2003/2004 financial year was $2.7 million. This is greater than the anticipated
loss of $1.382 million when the 2003/2004 budget was formulated. This figure took into account the
proposed receipt of a $1 million Commonwealth grant for the wind turbine project. During the course
of the 2003/2004 financial year the Board resolved to defer action on the wind turbine project. The non-
receipt of the $1 million grant resulted in the loss being increased.

The fundamental challenge for the Authority to achieve a sustainable and efficient operation was
recognised by the Office of the Auditor General and the subsequent Rottnest Island Taskforce during the
year. The highly competitive attractions of the Island’s accommodation and activities are still not reaching
their full potential by at least ensuring costs are covered and an appropriate financial return is achieved. 

The long-term financial viability and appeal of the Island is expected to be achieved and consolidated as
a result of funding by the State Government with an allocation of $20 million over the next 6 years
directed at infrastructure, and a commercially focussed management approach from the Authority. This
financial viability will ensure Rottnest Island continues as an important State asset, contributing to the
economic future of Western Australia.

The State Government’s previous 4 year commitment established in 2001/2002 to ensure that $14
million is allocated to the upgrade and repair of holiday accommodation and settlement areas is assured.
An outline of the position for the 3 years to 30 June 2004 is outlined below.
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Expenditure Projected Expenditure Total
to June 30 2004 to June 2005

Holiday Accommodation $835,344 $1,225,000 $2,060,344

Visitor Facilities (incl. $591,496 $2,886,000 $3,477,496
Universal Access)

Buildings and Infrastructure $2,117,236 $4,072,000 $6,189,236

Plant & Equipment $345,648 $125,000 $470,648

IT & Communications $437,750 $500,000 $937,750

Furniture, Fittings and Equipment $586,641 $225,000 $811,641

State Government Expenditure $4,914,115 $9,033,000 $13,947,115
Commitment - $14.000million

Planned expenditure during 2004/2005 will bring the total funds allocated to $14 million.

Utilities
Both the Office of the Auditor General and the Rottnest Island Taskforce highlighted that commercial
success of the Island relates directly to the management of the Island’s utilities. The Authority is
responsible for producing and managing power, water and waste services on the Island, fulfilling the
role of State utility suppliers. It is anticpated that forthcoming improvements to power generation
methods will not only beneficially impact on the cost of energy but subsequently the cost of producing
water.

Power
The cost of power generation on the Island is high in comparison to the mainland and has continued
to grow this year with 80% of the cost directly relating to the use of diesel and gas. The Rottnest Island
Taskforce conducted a thorough review of the Island’s power generation and distribution systems and
recommended the construction of a single 600kW wind turbine on Mt Herschel accompanied by 2 ‘low
load diesel generators’ and ‘dynamic grid interface’ technology. This power solution will reduce the
direct costs of power production on the Island.

The following graph tracks power production (volume and direct costs) since 1998/1999.

Power Production 1998 to 2004
Volume and Units Costs

13

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

1000000

2000000

3000000

4000000

5000000

kWh produced

cents/kWh produced

2003/042002/032001/022000/011999/001998/99

kW
h 

pr
od

uc
ed

 p
er

 a
nn

um

C
en

ts
 p

er
 k

W
h 

pr
od

uc
ed



Water
The Island’s potable water supply is made up of production from a reverse osmosis desalination facility
(71.21%), abstraction from groundwater bores (20.16%) and rainwater catchment (8.63%). During
the year, ongoing management of demand for potable water supplies has brought down consumption
since the peak in 2000/2001. The Taskforce review provided a number of recommendations that will
affirm a well-managed, long term potable water supply for the Island. Recommendations include:

» Ensuring effective beach wells are in place to provide a quality source of seawater for the
desalination plants;

» Carrying out repairs to the Island’s water storage tanks; and
» Preparing groundwater management plans.

Until 2001, the Island’s main source of water was through abstraction from freshwater bores, of which
there were some 30 in operation during a typical year. Lower than average annual rainfall over an
extended period and deteriorating water quality led to the need to identify an alternative water source
and the Island’s desalination capacity was more than doubled in early 2001. This resulted in a significant
rise in water production costs over 2000/2001 and 2001/2002 due to the desalination process being
energy intensive. The construction of the wind turbine and subsequent lower power production costs
will assist in bringing down water production costs in the future.

Water Production 1998 - 2004
Volume and Unit Costs

Wastewater
The Island’s wastewater is treated on site, fed by approximately 6 kilometres of sewer collection pipes
and a series of pumping stations.

Improvements in plant management have seen unit costs decrease since 1998. Further improvements
facilitated by funding as a result of findings of the Taskforce review will enable ongoing efficiencies to
be realised.

Waste Management
Rottnest Island’s landfill site is located on 2 hectares approximately 1.2km west of the main settlement
area. The location has been used as a landfill site for approximately 25 years.
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The landfill is currently licensed by Department of Environmental Protection as a putrescible landfill site
and is managed under a Site Management Plan supported by regular inspections and audits of licence
conditions. Upon closure of the current landfill cell in 2005, no further putrescible landfill facilities will
be permitted on the Island.

During the year a project to address waste management practices on the Island was conducted which
resulted in a wholistic strategy that deals with all waste streams and resource recovery options. The
development involved considerable preliminary research, which included waste audits and consultation
with Island businesses, visitors, staff and residents. 

In 2004/2005 the comprehensive Strategic Waste and Resource Management Plan will be implemented
that will ensure that the Authority remains a leader in the field of waste management. The State
Government has provided funding of $853,250 for the Strategy including $688,250 for plant and
capital equipment and $145,000 for education, implementation and training.

Facilities Management Contract
This was Transfield Services’ sixth year of service delivery under the Facilities Management Contract.

Services were delivered within budget for the year, with sound performance achieved across the suite
of service delivery elements.

The following statistics indicates the level of activity on the Island during the year:

» 6,869 maintenance jobs were completed of which 656, or 9.5% were “priority one” jobs, that is
those to be completed within one half hour of advice to the contractor. One complaint was received
during the year in relation to late response to a ‘priority one” call-out request;

» 15,055 units were cleaned, of which 0.96% were reworked as a result of unsatisfactory standards;
» There were no non-compliances to statutory licences;
» 296,940 items of luggage were handled during the year;
» 574 tonnes of waste was collected and processed at the Island’s landfill site and 216 tonnes of

recyclable product was collected and processed for transportation off the Island;
» 86,448kl of waste water was treated at the Island’s waste-water treatment plant;
» 117,776kl of water was produced on the Island from a combination of desalination, bore water and

rainwater catchment; and
» 4,136,811KwH of electricity was generated from the Island’s diesel powered power station.

The Facilities Management Contract between the Authority and Transfield Services for the delivery of
utilities and operations support was delivered within budget and at a high standard, reflected in the
annual analysis of contract key performance indicators. 
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The Island’s Future
As outlined, this year will mark the beginning of an important change for Rottnest Island. It is a change
which is needed to ensure that the management of the Island matches the enthusiasm of the Island’s
visitors for ‘getting it right’. This means planning to make sure an uncomplicated, smart management
approach matches the simple and easy holiday experience Rottnest Island is renowned for.

The Authority would like to acknowledge the hard work and commitment of Rottnest Island Authority
staff and also thank the many volunteers, including the Rottnest Island Voluntary Guides and
organisations such as the Rottnest Island Foundation, Rottnest Island Society, and the Winnit Club.
There are many others, who for a number of years, have provided significant amounts of their time and
money towards enhancing the visitor experience of Rottnest Island.

In moving on to a vibrant and sustainable future, the Authority looks forward to new ideas and working
with the staff, the Rottnest Island businesses and the community. Our vision is for Rottnest Island to
take its place as the most loved and eco-friendly holiday destination for Western Australians.

Paolo Amaranti
Chief Executive Officer
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Corporate Governance
The Rottnest Island Authority is a statutory authority created by an Act of Parliament; the Rottnest Island
Authority Act 1987 (the Act).

The Rottnest Island Authority meets monthly, or more often if necessary, to respond to specific needs.
The Authority met 18 times during 2003/2004.

Authority Membership
Pursuant to the Act, 6 members are appointed so that not less than 1 member is:
» a person experienced in conserving the environment;
» a person experienced in preserving buildings of historic value;
» a person with sound commercial experience; and
» a person who is a regular user of the Island for recreational purposes.

Members are appointed for a term not exceeding 3 years, but may be re-appointed.

Ms Jenny Archibald resigned as Chairman in March 2004. Mr Laurie O’Meara, Deputy Chairman, acted
as Chairman. An Acting Deputy Chairman was not appointed to the vacancy during the remainder of
the reporting year. 

Member Appointed No of Board meetings Meetings attended
during appointment (2003/04)

(2003/04)

Laurie O’Meara June 2000 18 18

Angas Hopkins May 2001 18 14

Rachael Roberts May 2001 18 14

Mimi Secco May 2003 18 13

Maurie Woodworth May 2003 18 17

Retired during reporting year:

Jenny Archibald November 2001 14 14

Board Member Profiles
Laurence (Laurie) O’Meara
(Acting Chairman)

Laurie O’Meara has a background in local government and has had a long association with the tourism
industry in Western Australia. Mr O’Meara was instrumental in the establishment of the Tourism Council
of Western Australia and was elected President at its inaugural meeting.  He is also President of the
Australian Tourism Accreditation Association Ltd, Deputy Chairman of the Western Australian Tourism
Commission, Director, Best Western Australia, and a Board member of the Perth International Arts
Festival.  Mr O’Meara was appointed to the Authority in June 2000, as a person with sound commercial
experience, and was appointed Deputy Chairman in 2001. He became Acting Chairman in March 2004.
He is also Chairman of the Rottnest Island Marine Issues Advisory Committee. 

Rachael Roberts
Rachael Roberts has a Bachelor of Applied Science from Murdoch University and a Bachelor of Arts from
the University of Western Australia. Ms Roberts has practical environmental experience with the
Australian Conservation Foundation and ongoing involvement in community-based projects. Ms
Roberts was appointed to the Authority in May 2001, as a person with practical knowledge of and
experience in conserving the environment.
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Angas Hopkins
Angas Hopkins has a Bachelor of Science with Honours in Ecology from the University of Queensland.
He oversaw the drafting of Western Australia’s first heritage legislation and has served as a
Commissioner on the Australian Heritage Commission. He is a Member of the Rottnest Island Authority
Finance and Audit Committee and was elected Chairman in May 2003. Mr Hopkins was appointed to
the Authority in May 2001, as a person with practical knowledge of and experience in the preservation
of buildings of historic value.

Mimi Secco
Mimi Secco is a Chartered Accountant with a Bachelor of Commerce from the University of Western
Australia. She has a financial background in both chartered accountancy and the commercial sector,
most recently in the hospitality and gaming industry. She is currently a business owner of an
Australasian importing and distribution company. Ms Secco was appointed in May 2003, as a person
with sound commercial experience. She is also a member of the Rottnest Island Finance and Audit
Committee. 

Maurice (Maurie) Woodworth
Maurie Woodworth was the Managing Partner of a company specialising in strategic planning,
negotiation and conflict management. Mr Woodworth has been a regular visitor to Rottnest Island since
1973 and is currently a reciprocal member of the Fremantle Sailing Club. He previously held the position
of Rear Commodore Power at the Royal Freshwater Bay Yacht Club and was a former committee
member of the Claremont Yacht Club. Mr Woodworth was appointed in May 2003, as a person who
is a regular user of Rottnest Island for recreational purposes. He is also an alternate member of the
Rottnest Island Finance and Audit Committee. 

Jennifer (Jenny) Archibald
Jenny Archibald has a Bachelor of Science from the University of Western Australia and is a member of
the Australian Institute of Company Directors. She is the part owner and operator of 2 companies
specialising in the mining industry. Ms Archibald was a member of the Fremantle City Council for 7
years, during which she was Mayor from 1994 to 1997. She is also Deputy Chair of the Fremantle Arts
Centre Press. Ms Archibald was appointed to the Authority as Chairman in May 2001. Ms Archibald
retired from the Authority in March 2004

Ministerial Directives
There were no Ministerial directives during the reporting year. 

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest from Rottnest Island Authority Board members during the
reporting year.

Committees
Rottnest Island Authority Finance and Audit Committee
The Finance and Audit Committee is a committee of the Rottnest Island Authority established under
Schedule 1.6 of the Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987. This committee’s role is to assist the Authority
in discharging its responsibilities of overseeing responsible financial and related management,
compliance, risk management and corporate governance.
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Member Organisation No of meetings during Meetings attended
appointment (2003/2004)
(2003/2004)

Angas Hopkins Rottnest Island 12 10
- Chairman Authority Board

Paul Stafford Independent Member 12 7

Mimi Secco Rottnest Island 12 9
Authority Board

Maurie Woodworth (alt.) Rottnest Island 12 4
Authority Board

Carol Shannon Rottnest Island Authority 12 12

Paolo Amaranti Rottnest Island Authority 3 3

Retired during reporting year:

Lesley Smith Rottnest Island Authority 9 9

Rottnest Island Marine Issues Advisory Committee
The Rottnest Island Marine Issues Advisory Committee is a committee of the Rottnest Island Authority
established under Schedule 1.6 of the Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987. This Committee has the role
of advising the Authority on matters relating to the management and recreational use of the marine
waters of the Rottnest Island Reserve across a broad cross-section of user groups, including the wider
boating community, recreational anglers and general recreational users of the Reserve. 

Member Organisation No of meetings Meetings
during appointment attended

(2003/2004) (2003/2004)

Laurie O’Meara (Chairman) Rottnest Island Authority 4 4
Board Member

Maurie Woodworth Rottnest Island Authority 4 4
Board Member

Joe Merillo Community representative 4 3

Peter Purves Rottnest Island Authority 4 4

Alex Spence Department for Planning 1 1
and Infrastructure

Andrew Cribb Department of Fisheries 4 3

Martin Box Boating Industry Association 4 4

Meikle Meecham Boating Western Australia 4 4

Ron Durell Community representative 4 4

Sharon Brown Community representative 4 2

Frits Steenhauer Community representative 4 2

Ross Cusack Community representative 4 2

Rick Reid Charter Boat Owners and 3 3
Operators Association

Retired during year:

Petrina Raitt Department for Planning 3 1
and Infrastructure

Claire Wright Rottnest Island Authority 0 0
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The Authority has sought and received advice on several key issues addressed in the Rottnest Island
Management Plan 2003-2008, including:

» Waste water management strategies for the marine waters of the Rottnest Island Reserve (eg. on-
going monitoring of the water quality testing program);

» Implementation of the trial mooring system for season 2003/2004 to improve equity of access and
increase the use of the Island’s 864 licensed recreational mooring sites;

» Application of the Boat Code Hull Identification Number (HIN) system in the management and
administration of recreational moorings in the Reserve;

» Identification of appropriate insurance levels for vessels using the marine waters of the Rottnest
Island Reserve; and

» Introduction of a volunteer, Honorary Bay Ranger program.

Rottnest Island Environmental Advisory Committee 
The Rottnest Island Authority appoints the Rottnest Island Environmental Advisory Committee (RIEAC)
to provide advice on major projects or policy directions that have a direct impact on Rottnest Island’s
environmental values. 

The Committee also provides advice on environmental issues, encourages research on Rottnest Island,
liaises with research bodies and advises on statutory monitoring, compliance and reporting. Ongoing
issues considered by the Committee include monitoring of the landfill site, monitoring of Thomson Bay’s
hydrocarbon plume, impact of sullage into the bays, woodlands restoration and dune and beach
restoration.

The RIEAC met 4 times in 2003/2004.

Member Organisation/field No of meetings Meetings attended
of expertise during appointment (2003/2004)

(2003/2004)

Dr Mark Garkalis Department of Conservation 4 4
and Land Management/
Zoological expertise

Dr Peta Sanderson Notre Dame University 4 2
representative

Dr Roger Passmore Rockwater Pty Ltd/ 4 3
Hydrological expertise

Greg Keighery Department of Conservation 4 2
and Land Management/ 
Botanical expertise

Dr Pierre Horwitz Edith Cowan University 4 2
representative

Dr Paddy Berry (Chairman) Western Australian Museum/ 4 3
Marine Biological expertise

Dr Ian Eliot University of Western Australia/ 4 3
Coastal Geomorphology expertise

Colin Murray Department of Environmental 4 4
Protection representative

Dr Chris Simpson Department of Conservation 4 4
and Land Management 
representative
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Roxane Shadbolt Rottnest Island Authority 1 1
(by invitation)

Claire Wright Rottnest Island Authority 4 4
(ex officio)

Harriet Davie Rottnest Island Authority 4 4
(Executive Support)

Retired during reporting year:

Dr Pratap Pullammanappillil Murdoch University/ 4 0
Environmental Technology expertise, 
Organic Waste

Lesley Smith Rottnest Island Authority 4 3
(by invitation) 

Rottnest Island Interpretation Facility Stakeholder Group
This group achieved its objective and finalised a conceptual model for a purpose built interpretation
facility on Rottnest Island in line with recommendation 100 of the Management Plan. 

Member Organisation No of meetings Meetings attended
during appointment (2003/2004)

(2003/2004)

Angas Hopkins (Chairman) Rottnest Island Authority Board 3 3

Rachel Roberts Rottnest Island Authority Board 1
(by invitation)

Roxane Shadbolt Rottnest Island Authority 3 2

Claire Wright Rottnest Island Authority 3 3

Jane McKenzie Rottnest Island Authority 3 3

Myra Stanbury Western Australian Maritime 1 1
Museum

Karen Majer Western Australian Maritime 2 1
Museum

Robert Mitchell Rottnest Island Military Heritage 3 2
Advisory Committee

Lisa Williams Western Australian Museum 3 3

Steven Sikirich Croatian History Group 3 2

Louise Arnold Heritage Council of WA 2 3

Lloyd Smith The Rottnest Island Foundation 3 3

Elizabeth Rippey Rottnest Voluntary Guides 3 3
Association

Dr Paddy Berry Rottnest Island Environmental 3 1
Advisory Committee

Sue Folks The Rottnest Society 3 2

Retired during reporting year:

Lesley Smith Rottnest Island Authority 3 2

Colin Ingham Rottnest Island Authority 0 0

Some attendances have been by proxy.

Committee membership was offered to the National Trust of Australia (WA) and the Rottnest Island
Death Group Aboriginal Corporation but was not taken up during the year. 
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Rottnest Island Cultural Heritage Advisory Committee
This Committee was formed in 2004 and has met once during the year. The Committee anticipates
meeting on a regular basis at a minimum of 4 times per year reporting to the Authority the outcomes
of each meeting and at the end of each financial year. 

The Committee will undertake the following tasks:

» Provide advice on major projects or policy directions that have a direct impact on Rottnest Island’s
cultural heritage values as requested by the RIA;

» Provide advice to the Board on any aspect of management of the Island that is of concern to the
Committee due to cultural heritage considerations;

» Invite relevant persons to Committee meetings who can provide useful advice/knowledge to
discussion of particular issues; and

» Provide advice on statutory implications of heritage listings.

Member Organisation/Expertise No of meetings Meetings attended
during appointment (2003/2004)

(2003/2004)

Robert Mitchell (Chairman) National Trust of Australia (WA) 1 1

Angas Hopkins Rottnest Island Authority Board 1 1

Roxane Shadbolt Rottnest Island Authority 1 1

Jane McKenzie Rottnest Island Authority 1 1

Philip Griffiths Architectural History 1 1
and Conservation

Peter Woodward Cultural Landscapes 1 1

Helen Burgess Social History 1 1

David Gilroy Material Conservation 1 1

Graham Horne Military History 1 1

Ian Maitland Structural Engineering 1 1

Stephen Carrick Heritage Council of WA 1 1

Peter Randolph Department of Indigenous Affairs 1 1

Michael McCarthy Maritime Archaeology 1 0

Representation on the Committee was offered to the Rottnest Island Deaths Group Aboriginal
Corporation but was not taken up during the year. 
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Rottnest Island Marine Strategy Working Group
The past year has seen the Working Group meet 6 times. The Group has agreed to a set of objectives
and has been developing a marine management strategy. A number of information sessions were
presented to the Working Group on the biodiversity values of the marine waters and on recreational
fishing pressures. The Group has made a number of recommendations which will form the basis for a
Rottnest Island Marine Management Strategy. 

Member Organisation No of meetings Meetings attended
during appointment (2003/2004)

(2003/2004)

Angas Hopkins (Chairman) Rottnest Island Authority Board 6 5

Claire Wright Rottnest Island Authority 6 6

Harriet Davie Rottnest Island Authority 6 6
(Executive Support)

Andrew Cribb Department of Fisheries 6 5

Dr Jane Fromont Western Australian Museum 6 6

Dr Chris Simpson Department of Conservation 6 4
and Land Management

Norman Halse Recfish West 6 6

Dr Nick Dunlop Conservation Council 6 5
of Western Australia

Hal Payne Outdoors WA 6 1

Barry Stubbs Charter Boat Owners 6 6
and Operators Association

Dr Lynnath Beckley Murdoch University 6 5

Dr Russ Babcock Commonwealth Scientific & 6 4
Industrial Research Organisation

Dr Ian Eliot Rottnest Island Environmental 6 2
Advisory Committee

Harry Welimnk WA Dive Tourism Association 3 3

Ross Cusack Rottnest Island Marine Issues 6 6
Advisory Committee

Retired during reporting year:

Jenny Archibald Rottnest Island Authority Board 5 4

Lesley Smith Rottnest Island Authority 5 3
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Rottnest Island Railway Advisory Committee
The Rottnest Island Railway Advisory Committee replaced the Rottnest Island Railway Trust in June
2003. The Committee exists to provide the Authority with relevant professional and technical rail advice
in regard to the running of accredited rail operations on the Island. The Committee, through its
membership provides a means to resource and coordinate appropriately skilled track and infrastructure
maintenance workers to support rail operations.

Unfortunately, rail operations on Rottnest Island were severely hampered as a result of the continued
mechanical unserviceability of old shunting tractors ST1 and ST2. Lack of availability of spare parts for
these vehicles caused suspension of the Island’s popular train tours until delivery of the Island’s new self
propelled railcar in November 2003.

The new railcar, named “Captain Hussey” arrived on the Island in early November 2003 and was
officially launched by Bob Kucera, Minister for Tourism on 9 November 2003.

Member Organisation No of meetings Meetings attended
during appointment (2003/2004)

(2003/2004)

Peter Purves (Chairman) Rottnest Island Authority 1 1

Jock Henderson Ex-member, Rottnest Island 1 1
Railway Trust

Bruce Callow Ex-member, Rottnest Island 1 1
Railway Trust

Bill Larke Ex-member, Rottnest Island 1 1
Railway Trust

Rod Vermeulen Ex-member, Rottnest Island 1 1
Railway Trust

Joe Angelucci Ex-member, Rottnest Island 1 1
Railway Trust

Max Bird Ex-member, Rottnest Island 1 1
Railway Trust

The Authority gratefully acknowledges the efforts of all committee members, as well as the many
volunteers who contributed to the Island throughout the year.
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Rottnest Island Management Plan 2003-2008 Implementation Report
The Rottnest Island Management Plan 2003-2008 (RIMP) was launched on 27 March 2003. 

The RIMP includes 249 recommendations, intended for implementation over the 5 year life of the plan.
At 30 June 2004 the plan had been in operation for 15 months. The RIMP contained 112
recommendations to be commenced in year one, and 43 recommendations to be commenced in year
two. 

The current status of the RIMP recommendations has been tabulated below.

Year One Recommendations: 

Status Number %

Completed 19 17.0 

Commenced 18 16.1

Ongoing 73 65.1

Not Commenced 2 1.8

Total 112 100

Year Two Recommendations:

Status Number %

Completed 1 2.3

Commenced 22 51.2

Ongoing 3 7.0

Not Commenced 17 39.5

Total 43 100

A full breakdown of the status of individual RIMP recommendations is detailed in Appendix “A”, 
Part I. Progress to June 30 2003 reported in Annual Report 2002/2003.

Since the launch of the 2003-2008 RIMP the Rottnest Island Taskforce has been established by the State
Government and reported back to it. In light of the Taskforce’s recommendations to the State
Government, the RIMP will be revised to reflect the new priorities and directions of the Authority.

In particular, the RIMP will be changed to incorporate a full costing schedule as recommended by The
Rottnest Island Taskforce.

In its report, the Taskforce has identified a need for future management plans to include a full costing
schedule of how the policies and operations proposed in a management plan will be funded. The future
development of management plans in conjunction with a business plan will promote informed debate
over whether activities proposed can be fully funded.

In 2004/2005 proposed amendment of the Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987 will strengthen the
requirement for inclusion of a full costing schedule in future management plans. This will underpin and
enforce the agreed actions contained in a management plan.
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Operations Report 2003/2004
Output 1: Provision of Services to Visitors
The Authority provides and operates accessible recreational and holiday facilities on Rottnest Island with
particular regard for the needs of people normally resident in Western Australia who visit or holiday on
the Island as a family group.

Our Visitors
The majority of visitors to Rottnest Island are repeat visitors. Of these repeat visitors nearly half have
travelled to the Island more than 10 times before. Family groups and visitors from regional Western
Australia are more likely to book an overnight or extended stay. 

Day trips to Rottnest are popular with singles, couples and interstate visitors. Summer and spring
continue to be the most popular times to visit the Island and most people visit the Island with the
intention to relax, get away from it all and spend time with family and friends.2

Visitor numbers for the year have shown a 4.4% decrease in the total number of arrivals by ferry, a
decline of some 15,000 visitors over the previous year. Samples indicate this is partly attributed to less
international visitors and less Perth residents coming to the Island in comparison to the previous year.3

The decline is considered moderate when contemplating the continued effects of world events on
inbound tourist numbers and the sustained negative perceptions Rottnest Island experienced locally
through the year.

Number of Visitors Arriving by Commercial Ferry or Air Services

1997/98 1998/99 1999/00 2000/01 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04

Total 338,106 332,695 348,498 347,045 351,292 353,750 338,389  

The overall visitor number is still around half a million annually with visitors to the Island by private and
charter recreational vessels remaining estimated at 150,000. 

The downturn in visitor numbers is despite surveys showing an improvement in visitor satisfaction across
many areas when compared to 2002/2003. The critical area of accommodation received a higher rating
for all aspects in comparison to last year, up 9%.4

Rottnest Island Authority Holiday Accommodation
A wide range of accommodation is provided on Rottnest Island by the Authority. The diversity of the
accommodation selection suits a number of holiday budget options. 

Camping sites, a youth hostel, cabins, self-contained units, villas and heritage cottages have been the
basis for the ongoing popularity of a Rottnest holiday for many years.

Figures below show that accommodation occupancy remains steady and consistent. The overall average
annual occupancy of 76% remains comparable to previous years.
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Average Accommodation Occupancy

2000/01 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04

75% 80% 76% 76%

Average Occupancy by Accommodation Category 2003/2004

Allison Kingstown Caroline Geordie Bay/ Thomson
(camping only) Barracks Thomson Longreach/ Bay Cabins

Cabins Fay’s Bay Cabins

29% 56% 65% 78% 76%

The popularity of the Island in the warmer months continues to see December to April accommodation
occupancy ranging from 90 to 100%.

Allison Camping occupancy reflects only the tented campsite area. Following customer feedback
regarding the lack of amenity and deteriorating condition of Allison cabins, it has been resolved to
demolish the cabins. 

Accommodation Booking System
In April 2004 the Authority assimilated the Kingstown Barracks booking system into its current
electronic reservations system, transferring the bookings process to the Customer Contact Centre. The
Customer Contact Centre now conducts the reservation process for all Authority accommodation,
thereby improving efficiency and customer service to users of the Barracks and its associated facilities.

Booking enquiries have also improved through the use of the Authority’s online system. In addition to
being able to check availability, customers can now go to the Authority’s website and take a virtual tour
of selected accommodation, find details of how to book accommodation, compare prices and look in
on the “frequently asked questions” page.

As a result, enquiry calls direct to the Customer Contact centre have declined, with a corresponding
response time and service level improvement from the Customer Contact Centre being achieved.

Applying for accommodation online during balloted periods has been embraced by the Authority’s
customers, with over 90% being lodged on line. The Authority will continue to upgrade and improve
its accommodation reservation processes through the use of on-line systems where possible. However,
existing systems operated by the Authority are aged and consideration in regard to their replacement
will occur during 2004/2005.

Tours and Transport Operations
The Island’s Two Hour Tour and the Bayseeker services are a convenient way to explore the Island. 

The total number of visitors booking the Authority’s Island tours and using the Bayseeker service has
declined over the year. These results reflect, and are consistent with, the view that it is partly from the
international market segment where overall visitor numbers have declined. This market segment tends
to reflect the ‘day-tripper’ visitor profile, and it is these visitors who are more inclined to avail themselves
of these tour and transport services.

Ferry operators provide a steady source of tour passengers and are allocated a certain number of seats
per day. However, the number of packaged passenger sales from ferry operators for 2003/2004 has also
declined, contributing to the overall result. 

The Authority has retired 2 of its fleet of 6 Bayseeker vehicles due to age, placing further pressure on
the ability to meet passenger demand at peak times. Furthermore, the Rottnest Island Taskforce has
again highlighted the incompatibility of style and presentation, as well as operating parameters of the
Bayseeker vehicles and the need to review operations. 
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Included in any review of bus services will be the Shuttle bus service. Used to support the
accommodation operations and its guests staying in the outer part of the settlement it is a highly
popular service. The link runs from the main settlement to Kingstown Barracks and then on to Geordie,
Fays and Longreach bays.

Transport capacity will need to be balanced carefully with demand so as to maintain effective services and
the overall amenity of the Island, particularly with the Island’s fundamental ethos of being “vehicle free”. 

Two Hour Tour Passenger Numbers 

2001/02 2002/03 2003/04

48,141 43,771 39,376

Bayseeker Passenger Numbers

2001/02 2002/03 2003/04

72,166 74,042 69,497

The Rottnest Island Hotel
During the 12 month period ending June 30 2004, the Rottnest Island Hotel has been the subject of
ongoing change in relation to its management and operations.

Prior to 31 March 2004, the Hotel was operated by the Axis Management Group Pty Ltd under both a
management arrangement and later, an interim lease.

In 2003 the Authority released a Request For Proposal (RFP) for the development and operation of a
licensed food and beverage facility on the Hotel site. After consultation with the Rottnest Island
Taskforce the Authority resolved to terminate the RFP and await the Taskforce recommendations.

On 1 April 2004 the Authority assumed direct operational management of the Hotel with the assistance
of accounting and audit firm, Pitcher Partners. The advantage of this was that the Authority could gain
a direct understanding of the true value of the business and its trading worth for future lease and/or
management negotiations. 

Significant works were commenced on the Hotel during 2003/2004, addressing the finding of the
Occupational Health and Safety Report commissioned by the Rottnest Island Taskforce. In addition to
this the Department of Health inspected the site for the Authority highlighting issues needing attention.
The Government provided supplementary funding of $250,000 towards carrying out improvements
recommended in the Report. 

Rail Operations
Rail operations on Rottnest Island are an important part of the Island’s heritage network, commencing
in the late 1930’s as part of the military installation on Rottnest servicing the Oliver Hill gun battery. The
railway and train operations on Rottnest were re-introduced to Rottnest in 1994, with the
reconstruction and establishment of 6.3 kilometres of narrow gauge railway linking the settlement area
with Oliver Hill.

The railway is considered to be an integral component of the Island’s tourist services and an important
activity for day-trip and accommodated visitors alike.

Unfortunately, during the early part of 2003 continued mechanical breakdowns of vehicles ST1 and ST2,
the railway’s old shunting tractors that provided traction for the train, coupled with the lack of available
spare parts saw the suspension of all train operations until November 2003.

The result of the unserviceability of the rail vehicles, which lead to train services being unavailable
between November and October 2003 is reflected in the decline of passengers from 2001/2002 levels. 
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Railway Passenger Numbers 

2001/02 2002/03 2003/04

15,826 7,298 9,054

With Authority funding, advice from the Rottnest Railway Advisory Committee and assistance from many
volunteers, a new, self propelled diesel powered railcar was introduced to operations in November 2003. 

Named the “Captain Hussey” and officially launched by the Minister for Tourism on the Island on 9
November 2003, train tour and passenger numbers have steadily risen to levels consistent with the
results achieved in 2001/2002.

The new railcar affords better operating procedures and conditions that will allow the opening of the
Kingstown spurline. This will provide an opportunity to integrate train services to Kingstown Barracks.
In addition, the Authority is currently examining the implementation of new tours, involving Oliver Hill
and Wadjemup Lighthouse precincts, in which it is hoped the train will play an important role.

Rottnest Island Voluntary Guides Tours and Activities
Tours and activities offered by the Rottnest Voluntary Guides Association (RVGA) promote awareness of
the Island’s historical significance and natural environment, while providing an educational aspect to
Island visitors. There are approximately 175 Rottnest Island Voluntary Guides.

Many of the Guides tours are provided free-of-charge, offering an accessible and enjoyable experience
to augment the tour products provided by the Authority. This year visitor numbers joining tours
remained high:

RVGA Tours 2003/04

Tour Visitor numbers

Daily History Tours 4,550

Lomas Cottage/Boat Shed 10,920

Quokka Walk (part year only) 728

Oliver Hill Gun Tour 9,100

Special Request Tours 225 groups  

In addition to these tours, the Guides provide an extensive holiday program with additional activities.
The number of participants in these activities is outlined below:

Number of participants
West End and Lighthouse trip 440
Ghosts, Mysteries and Legends 880
Stargazing 275
Treasure Hunt 990
Other ‘Holiday Guiding’ activities 165

The heritage Salt Store building is also a highlight for visitors, and Guides are available to show its
attractions, provide information and answer questions.

Bike Hire
Despite substantial competition from other bike hire services operated by ferry companies, the
Authority’s service performed strongly during the year providing 10% of the Tourist Services Directorate
operating return.

29



Due to the continued strong demand for the hire service provided by the Authority, a further 504 bikes
were purchased this year. This is in addition to the previous year’s purchase of over 400 bikes.

The Authority’s bike hire service is aiming to ensure a diversity of equipment is available to visitors. This
year the fleet was enhanced with new mountain bikes, children’s bikes, tandems, adult tricycles, child
trailers and ‘comfort’ bikes. The Authority’s Bike Hire also provides a hire service for mobility impaired
visitors who are unable to bring their own assist vehicles to the Island.

Bike Hire staff have experienced positive comments from visitors regarding the improved service since
the Authority resumed management in February 2002. Market Equity’s report Evaluating the Rottnest
Island Experience shows an improved satisfaction rating compared to the previous year.

Rottnest Island Website
Following development and testing, the exciting second phase of the redevelopment of the Rottnest
Island Website (www.rottnestisland.com) was launched in 2004.

The site was revamped with a view to improving the visitor experience, and the range and quality of
information available. The site offers a dynamic and interesting environment for visitors to get a first
impression of Rottnest Island.

The main new features of the website include: 

» dynamic content linking;
» using improved metadata management to draw items of interest together;
» alternative forms of navigation including using a map;
» calendar and ‘theme’ based navigation; 
» an improved search facility; 
» a new front page;
» news page;
» photo gallery;
» media release pages; 
» facilities for more pictures and upload of audio/visual content; 
» introduction of virtual tours of accommodation units; 
» more downloadable documents, brochures and forms; and 
» improved content management facility.

A snapshot of April/May 2004 showed that an average of over 600 ‘unique visitors’ per day, spent an
average of over 10 minutes on the site. An account of unique visitors identifies the probable number
of individuals as opposed to the number of ‘hits’ they make on different pages on the site.

Most website visitors’ time was spent examining the accommodation information, photo library and
activity information, downloading the Island and accommodation maps, and the Annual Reports.
Visitors mostly came from Australia (particularly Western Australia). Other visitors included the US, UK,
New Zealand, mainland Europe and Asia. 

Universities and schools provided extensive numbers of visitors to the site, reflecting its status as a
centre for information about the Island. 
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Moorings
From 1 September 2003 a 12 month Recreational Mooring Trial System came into effect in Rottnest’s
waters. This concept was designed to better address the issue of equitable access to the licensed
recreational moorings. The system is intended to present the best possible option to increase
accessibility. 

The trial system retains current arrangements for mooring licensees, while expanding the number of
authorised users that can access each mooring, giving the Authority the ability to nominate authorised
users to licensees’ mooring sites. Existing arrangements with previous authorised users did not change
and mooring licensees continue to have priority access to their mooring above all other users.

In addition to their allocated mooring/s, licensees and authorised users have “casual use” access of
other suitably sized moorings provided that these sites are not being used by the mooring licensee or
another nominated authorised users. Casual users are able to access any suitable site around the Island
under the casual use guidelines.

The Rottnest Island Taskforce considers that the trial system should be fully evaluated prior to any
further changes being made in relation to the management of moorings. The Taskforce has also
recommended increases in the numbers of rental moorings should be an important consideration in
future mooring management plans.

To alleviate difficulties that were experienced in processing licence renewals and new user applications,
the Authority has revised its administrative timings for season 2004/2005. 

Events, Functions and Exhibitions
The utilisation of the Island’s environment and facilities for purposes other than those directly relating
to a holiday are an important part of the Island’s business portfolio.

Events, functions and exhibitions can range from high profile sporting events, which in turn, generate
function revenue, through to low-key wedding ceremonies which may have the hidden benefit of
bringing visitors to the Island who would not normally consider a trip for their own reasons. 

Major events such as the Swim Thru and the Channel Swim are estimated to bring up 1,500 to 2,000
extra visitors by ferry respectively, with an extra 1,000 people coming by support vessels for the Channel
Swim.

This year 23 events and 57 functions were held in association with the Island with the highlights being:

July Rottnest Island Winter Wonders 
RVGA School Holiday Program
NAIDOC Week

August Rottnest Island Golf Cup
WA Open Surfing Series

October Rottnest Spring Splendour
RGVA School Holiday Program
Rottnest Marathon & Fun Run

November Boating Industry Association Safety Convoy

December Rottnest Swim Thru
Rottnest Volunteers Breakfast
Rottnest Carols on the Common

January - February Rottnest Celebrates Summer Program of Events.
Summer Fun Spectacular
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RVGA School Holiday Program

February Multiplex Living Rottnest Channel Swim

March Rottnest Kite Surf Classic

April – May Rottnest Island Autumn Colours
RGVA School Holiday Program
Rottnest Open Water Classic
Australian Open Surf Masters
ANZAC Day Dawn Service
Boating industry Association Safety Convoy  

Exhibitions
The Salt Store Gallery and Exhibition Centre is a popular attraction for Island visitors. During 2003/2004
several repeat clients and new customers hired the exhibition space to stage private shows illustrating
their interpretations of the Island’s scenic beauty.

In addition, a number of displays were held ranging from the “resident” interpretative display,
explaining the building’s original function as a saltworks, to community information displays. These
depicted current-day photographic views of the Island’s military heritage, and more recently a
photographic display of the “Then and Now” of heritage buildings celebrating the year of the Built
Environment. 

Leased and Licenced Services
Leases are issued by the Rottnest Island Authority to a variety of business operators to provide services
deemed suitable and comparable to the Island’s objectives. Collectively this group, along with all ferry
businesses operating to the Island, is known as the Rottnest Island Business Community.

The Authority is the principal provider of services on the Island and works together with the business
community to ensure quality and consistent services are provided to enhance the holiday experience of
visitors. 

Leases currently in operation are listed below:

Business Lease Commencement Lease Expiry

Rottnest Hair and Beauty 1 July 2000 30 June 2005

Dome Café 11 November 1996 10 November 2006

Brett Heady’s Family Fun Park 2 August 1998 1 August 2007

Red Rooster 3 December 1986 2 December 2007

Rottnest Tearooms 18 November 1998 17 November 2008

Rottnest Malibu Dive Shop 1 June 2003 31 May 2009

Indianic Boutique 1 May 2000 30 April 2010

Rottnest General Store 1 July 2000 30 June 2010

Geordie Bay General Store 1 July 2000 30 June 2010

Rottnest Bakery* 1 September 2002 30 April 2014

Rottnest Lodge 1 June 1983 31 May 2018
*to be signed after 30 June 2004

To complement the services provided by the Business Community and meet the needs of the high
volume of visitors mainly during the summer, seasonal attractions are also provided via a licence.
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Licences to operate small businesses on the Island, as distinct from lease arrangements, were devised
in the late 1990’s. They are a way of enhancing the visitor experience, bringing specialist operators to
the Island to provide services in keeping with the Island’s ethos, but which do not require significant
infrastructure support.

Licence opportunities on the Island are offered through open, public Expressions of Interest. The
frequency of these offers varies. Since their inception, there have been 3 separate processes. The last
offer was in 2003. Licence terms vary between 3 and 5 years.

Activities available during 2003/2004 under a licence arrangement included:

» glass-bottom boat experience of bay, reef and marine wrecks
» scenic flights
» astronomy tours
» sea kayak tours
» small glass-bottom boats operating in Geordie Bay
» movies shown at the Picture Hall
» mobile serving of drinks and icecreams to the outer bays
» snorkel-diving activities
» general catering services

Visitor Satisfaction
Maintaining customer interest and satisfaction with the Island is the basis of all visitor servicing activities
on the Island. This year, the Rottnest Island Taskforce recognised the commercial importance of the
Island’s visitors and provided recommendations for enhancing their experiences when visiting the Island.
These will be addressed in the coming year.

Despite some negative public comment about the Island, independent research showed that there was
a significant improvement on the overall satisfaction rating in comparison to the previous year. 

A total of 88% of visitors were either satisfied or very satisfied with recreational and holiday services on
the Island. Last year the overall satisfaction rating was 81%.
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Performance Measures for Output 1
Measure 2003/04 2003/04 2004/05 Reasons for significant

target actual target variations between 
estimated and actual

Quantity
Number of services provided 632,000 609,055 632,000 2.6% variation due to

reduced numbers

Quality
Customer satisfaction with 85% 88% 90% Target Exceeded
recreational and holiday services 
and facilities on Rottnest Island 

Rottnest holiday is value for money 75% 81% 85% Target Exceeded

Timeliness
Visitor and Accommodation 100% 100% 100%
services to customers every 
day of the year

Mooring renewal packs sent 100% 100% 100%
out in time 

Cost
Weighted average cost per $36.00 $32.18 $36.00 Reduced expenditure 
visitor service provided due partly to lower than 

expected staff costs.

34



Output 2: Conservation of the Natural and Cultural Environment
The Authority manages the Island’s natural and cultural environment to conserve its value for future
generations. This occurs through visitor education, interpretation, compliance with Regulations,
research, monitoring and appropriate management strategies.

The Rottnest Island Environmental Advisory Committee advises the Authority on projects and
management strategies to assist with the environmental management of the Island. 

Environment
As a result of historical land uses and unrestricted visitor access, some areas of the natural environment
on Rottnest Island have become degraded. Management strategies are in place to rehabilitate natural
habitats and conserve the Island’s flora and fauna. The management of potentially damaging activities,
such as the disposal of waste and the abstraction of ground water for human consumption are
monitored and reported by environment staff.

Following advice from the CALM Wildlife Conservation Branch changes to policy and guidelines for the
management of compromised quokkas were developed. The consultation was broad ranging and
included the Australian Veterinary Association, CALM, Murdoch University Research Ethics Group,
Department of Local Government and Regional Development, the Rottnest Island Environmental
Advisory Committee, Perth Zoo and the RSPCA (WA).

The woodland restoration program aims to restore woodland habitat on the Island to a state similar to
that found by the first European settlers on the Island. The 20 year Woodland Restoration Strategy was
reviewed in 2003. The Rottnest Island Environmental Advisory Committee has considered the extensive
review from which an implementation strategy will be developed. A PhD research project (Spatial and
Temporal Dynamics of Woodland Restoration Sites on Rottnest Island) is now in its third year and the
information gained in this project has been incorporated into the reviewed Woodland Restoration
Strategy.

There are currently 3 known and 2 suspected contaminated sites on Rottnest Island. The 2 most
significant sites have been monitored regularly over a number of years with results reported to the
Department of the Environment. Monitoring results indicate that the hydrocarbon plume in Thomson
Bay is stable and presents negligible public health risk and low environmental risk. The leachate plume
at Forbes Hill will be subject to a risk assessment and further investigation during the latter part of 2004.
A project management group has been formed to assist in the future management of these sites.

The coastal environment of the Island is subject to considerable erosion from both natural pressures and
human impact. The installation of formalised paths and beach access assists in reducing these impacts.
CoastCare funding was received during the year which enabled a new beach access way to be
constructed to Lady Edeline Beach. This was undertaken in conjunction with Conservation Volunteers.

In May 2003 the Island was lashed by an intense storm which coincided with extreme high tide. The
damage inflicted from this one event was as extensive as that experienced from Cyclone Alby in 1978.
The State Government allocated supplementary funding of $800,000 in the 2003/2004 financial year
to repair the damage caused by the storm and substantial works have been undertaken to repair the
damage sustained. This includes large-scale renourishment and brushing of dunes at South Thomson
Bay and Geordie Bay and the repair and replacement of dune fencing at South Thomson Bay, Geordie
Bay, Pinkies Beach and Lady Edeline Beach. Repair and/or replacement of beach access was required at
South Thomson, Geordie Bay, Little Parakeet Bay, Parker Point, Salmon Bay and Longreach Bay. Major
repairs were completed for the Main Jetty, Geordie Bay Jetty and the Army Jetty with smaller scale
repairs undertaken on Stark Jetty and the Hotel Jetty.

The Strategic Waste and Resource Management Plan (the Strategy) was completed in February 2004
and endorsed by the Board. The Strategy recommends a transfer station be constructed on the Island
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as well as the removal of all domestic waste, recyclables and putrescible commercial waste from
Rottnest Island. The landfill site will handle only inert wastes, which will extend the life of current cells.
The Strategy includes a significant education program of visitors, businesses and Island staff to embrace
the new waste management system. The plant and equipment costs for implementing the Strategy
totals $853,250 with an annual operating cost of $305,720. The State Government has accepted a
Rottnest Island Taskforce recommendation to adopt and fund the Plan. Implementation is due to
commence later in 2004 with an expected completion by early 2005. 

Maintenance of marine water quality is critical for the protection of environmental health, human
health and the amenity of the Island. A marine water quality-monitoring program is in place to
determine bacterial loads. Samples are taken regularly throughout the peak season with targeted
sampling in busy periods such as Christmas, New Year’s Eve and Easter. Results indicate that overall
there is no significant problem regarding the quality of the marine waters of the Rottnest Island Reserve.
The Authority has continued an awareness campaign by making the water quality monitoring results
available on the Authority website. 

During the year, Zodiac Australia donated a 4.2 metre inflatable vessel to assist in implementing a
nutrient marine water sampling program. In addition $5000 was allocated to the Rottnest Island
Foundation to help pay for costs associated with the proposed program. Safety equipment was also
donated for the vessel (Balaena) and the Foundation donated a quad bike to the Conservation Branch
which can be used to launch the boat as well as undertaking other tasks.

The Rottnest Island Marine Management Strategy Working Group met 6 times during the year to
develop a Marine Management Strategy. The working group outlined a set of objectives and a
framework for developing the strategy. Information sessions were held with the working group on
marine biodiversity values, recent research undertaken on shore-based recreational fishing activities and
current marine reserve use. CALM’s Marine Branch has assisted the Authority in establishing a
Geographic Information System database that displays this marine information which has been vital for
the group in the development of a marine management strategy. A final strategy is expected to be
completed by mid 2005.

In August 2003 the Authority hosted a Research Framework Workshop to determine research topics
and priorities required for management purposes. Over 40 people attended the workshop including
scientists, research experts, students, Authority staff and Board members. 

During the year 27 permits were issued for research projects conducted on the Island. There are a
number of additional projects that are continuing from permits issued in previous years.

Heritage
Rottnest Island has a significant proportion of heritage assets including an intact Colonial settlement, 2
lighthouses, military installations, areas of Aboriginal significance and recreational heritage. Assets are
listed at state and national level. The Rottnest Island Authority also maintains its own Heritage Asset
Register, which is comparable with a Local Government Municipal Inventory for heritage places.

An assessment of all State heritage-listed places on Rottnest Island was undertaken during the year to
determine their state of repair and priorities for further conservation.

Conservation works were undertaken to Cottages F & G between May and October 2003. These works
included the reconstruction of the timber verandahs, the removal of asbestos roof coverings, the
limewashing of the building and other improvements.

Conservation works were also undertaken on the Department of Interior Defence Building at Kingstown
Barracks, with grant funding to the Rottnest Voluntary Guides Association from Lotterywest. The
Rottnest Island Foundation were also able to commission a conservation plan for Signal Ridge with
grant funding from Lotterywest.
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In March 2004, the Rottnest Island Authority was named as a finalist in the Heritage Council of Western
Australia’s annual awards. These awards recognise outstanding commitment and ongoing contribution
to heritage conservation and interpretation in Western Australia.

Interpretation
Interpretation is the informal education of visitors, as opposed to formal programs in place for
education groups. Interpretation activities add to visitors’ knowledge and enjoyment of the Island and
help them make appropriate choices about how they interact with the natural environment and
heritage assets.

Interpretative activities on Rottnest Island include guided and self-guided tours, signage, walk trails,
brochures and website information. 

As the Year of the Built Environment 2004 has been celebrated on Rottnest Island with the launch of a
new booklet: “A Guide to the Historic Buildings of the Thomson Bay Settlement”. An exhibition and
open inspections of heritage buildings for members of the public accompanied the launch of the
booklet.

A new brochure on quokkas was also prepared and published in early 2004. This brochure provides
information that is frequently requested by visitors and also assists with managing visitor behaviour in
relation to quokkas. A new poster highlighting a minimal interaction approach to viewing quokkas
complements the quokka brochure.

A Rottnest Island Interpretation Facility Stakeholder Group was formed in 2003. This group developed
a conceptual model for an interpretation facility, to be constructed on Rottnest Island some time in the
future.

Education  
On Rottnest Island, students are able to investigate first hand the Island’s remarkable environment,
including: history and culture; terrestrial and marine life; and conservation and sustainable
management. A focal point for the Island’s wide range of educational opportunities is the
Environmental Education Centre based at Kingstown Barracks.

Education and community groups coming to Rottnest Island for day excursions or extended camps can
participate in a range of innovative education programs. These programs are produced and delivered
by the Rottnest Island Education Services.

The Environmental Education Program has been developed in line with the Western Australian
Department of Education and Training’s Curriculum Framework and is aimed at primary and secondary
students. However, it can be modified for tertiary and adult community groups. In 2003/2004, 135
schools and over 18,985 students (face to face contact) participated in this significant program. 

The Environmental Awareness Course, designed for teachers, community leaders and members of the
public, covers environmental conservation and management of the Island, assisting group leaders to
plan and implement their own effective education programs. Six of these comprehensive two-day
courses were conducted during the year with 114 participants.

The School Holiday Program operates in all 4 school holidays and incorporates Winter Wonders, Spring
Splendour, Summer Fun Spectacular, and Autumn Colours. The program aims to promote conservation
of the Rottnest environment through hands on exploration and investigation. Over 995 children
participated in the program this year.
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The Community Service Program involves school and community groups in environmental works such
as seed collection and shelling, reptile survey set up and dune brushing. The activities undertaken
greatly contribute to the sustainable management of the Island and this year more than 60 schools and
3,057 students were involved. 

Rottnest Island Education Services hosted the fourth annual Seaweek Teachers Expo in March as part of
“Seaweek” – an ongoing public education campaign organised by the Marine Education Society of
Australasia. The Authority was joined by other participating organisations including the Department of
Fisheries, the Department for Planning and Infrastructure, Surf Life Saving WA, High Tide Marine
Education, Capricorn Kayak Tours, Underwater Explorer II, the Aquarium of Western Australia and the
Western Australian Museum. Participants could choose from 3 workshops, which included activities
such as boating and beachcombing, sea kayaking and snorkelling a marine trail. 

In 2003/2004 Seaweek was made possible with funding assistance from Fishcare WA and sponsorship
from Capricorn Kayak Tours and Rottnest Island Underwater Explorer II. 

Rangers
Rottnest Rangers are one of the high profile public faces of the Authority. A major component of their
work relates to ensuring compliance to the Rottnest Island Regulations 1988. The Regulations are in
place to protect and conserve the natural and cultural environment values and public amenity of the
Island. As much as possible compliance is achieved with an educative approach rather than
enforcement.

Enforcement action is taken when unlawful actions damage or place at risk facilities, wildlife, property
or visitor amenity. Outcomes of enforcement include requiring people to leave the Island for a period
of up to 7 days of which 89 such requests were issued this year. An additional 40 ‘cancellation of
licences to occupy accommodation’ were issued and 302 infringement notices were issued. 

Critical times of the year, such as New Year’s Eve and school leaver’s celebrations, were well managed
in conjunction with the Rottnest Island Police. The trial of new control initiatives proved highly
successful and was deemed to have had a beneficial impact for all visitors to the Island.

Rangers also undertake wildlife management activities. A new wildlife station was completed in May
2004. This facility provides a treatment room and holding runs for sick and injured animals under
observation. All rangers undertook further training in wildlife care and management during the year.

The Ranger group assisted with the training of participants in a new “Honorary Bay Ranger” program.
The program is aimed at providing information on changes to marine management and ensuring an
accessible source of advice and guidance to vessel operators. The volunteer program, with 8
representatives from the Rottnest Island boating community undertook full briefings in regard to the
Island and relevant operations such as moorings management.

A total of 29 Honorary Rangers graduated after the completion of a training program run over the
summer season. The ongoing interest in this program from a wide variety of the Authority staff and
businesses on the Island ensures the care of the Island is seen as a broad responsibility and not just that
of Authority Rangers.

Even with successful honorary ranger programs the Authority Rangers continue to be the main point of
contact in regard to compliance issues for visitors to the Island and those using the marine environment.
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Performance Measures for Output 2
Measure 2003/04 2003/04 2004/05 Reasons for significant

target actual target variations between 
estimated and actual

Quantity
Heritage assets that have been 2% 3% 12% Exceeded target
improved in condition (percentage 
of State Heritage registered assets)

Number of seedlings planted 55,000 38,600 48,000 Reduced plantings due 
to late start to 2004 
winter rains.

Quality
Island properties listed on the 90% 90% 90%
State heritage register assessed 
to be in fair or good condition

Number of hectares planted 8 4.5 6.5 Late start to 2004 winter 
rains; decision to replant
other areas affected by 
low rainfall and grazing 
by native animals

Timeliness
Completion of heritage 100% 100% 60%* * Target amended: work 
conservation works prior will continue after the 
to summer season commencement of the

2004 summer season due 
to the size of work 
programs.

Completion of planting before 100% 100% 100% 
end of winter rains 

Cost
Total operating expenses as a 4.0% 4.3% 4.0% Higher expenditure resulted 
percentage of conservation assets due to significant 

maintenance of heritage
sites; and requirements 
identified resulted in 
unplanned investigative 
works for the management 
of contaminated sites.
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Compliance Information
Comment on Events Occurring after Reporting Date
No events occurred after 30 June 2004 to the signing of this report to adversely affect the operations
of the Rottnest Island Authority.

Changes in Written Law
The Rottnest Island Regulations 1988 (the Regulations) were amended to increase the individual adult
admission fee from $10.45 to $11.00 effective from 1 July 2003. 

The Regulations were also amended to alter the annual payment in lieu of admission fees for
recreational vessels visiting Rottnest Island from a flat rate of $110 to a scale of fees based on the length
of the vessel from 1 September 2003.

Length of vessel Admission fee

8 metres or less $121.00

More than 8 metres but less than 10 metres $137.50

10 metres or more but less than 15 metres $165.00

15 metres or more $275.00

The boating annual payment in lieu of the admission fee had not been increased in line with the
Consumer Price Index (CPI) for 3 years. 

Mooring licence fees for recreational vessels were increased from 1 September 2003 from a rate of $55
per metre (with a minimum payment of $500) to $66 per metre (with a minimum of $660). This fee
had not been increased in line with the CPI for 5 years. The Regulations were also amended to provide
for an annual authorised user payment of $33 per metre length of vessel.

The Regulations were also amended to provide for an increase in the annual admission fee payments
for fishing and diving charter operators from 1 July 2003. 

Annual Payment by fishing or diving charter operator

Declared No. of visits to Rottnest Island Existing fee Proposed fee

Less than 15 $8.80 multiplied $22.00 multiplied  
by capacity* by capacity

15 to 30 visits $17.60 multiplied $44.00 multiplied 
by capacity by capacity

31 to 45 visits $26.40 multiplied $66.00 multiplied 
by capacity by capacity

More than 45 visits $35.20 multiplied $88.00 multiplied 
by capacity by capacity

* In this schedule, “capacity” means the maximum number of passengers the vessel is certificated to carry.

Admission fees for charter vessels were last increased in 1993. Since then these fees have only been
adjusted for provision of Goods and Services Tax.

These amendments reflect the recommendations of the Rottnest Island Management Plan 2003-2008.

In December 2003 the Rottnest Island (Restricted Areas) Notice 2003 was published in the Government
Gazette. The Notice applied to the 2004 New Year’s Eve celebration period and restricted anchoring,
beach anchoring and beaching of vessels during that time.

The Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987 was not amended in 2003/2004.
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Recordkeeping Plans
The State Records Act 2000 came into effect on 1 December 2001. The Authority is subject to the
principles and standards contained within the Act. The Authority’s Record Keeping Plan (RKP), has been
approved by the State Records Commission. The Authority’s Information Services Induction Training
program addresses employees’ roles and responsibilities to ensure compliance with the Authority’s RKP.

Induction training was conducted for all new employees. Information sessions were held for existing
employees on record keeping requirements and the use of the record keeping software TRIM. The
efficiency and effectiveness of the recordkeeping training/induction program is reviewed annually.

Freedom of Information
For the year ended 30 June 2004, 6 applications were received in accordance with the Freedom of
Information Act 1992 (FOI Act).

In accordance with Part 5 section 94 of the FOI Act the Authority has an Information Statement
available for inspection or purchase by the public.

All inquiries can be made to the Freedom of Information Coordinator at Rottnest Island Authority, Level
1, E Shed, Victoria Quay, Fremantle or PO Box 693, Fremantle 6959 or by phone (08) 9432 9300.

Public Interest Disclosures
To meet its obligations under the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 the Authority has:

» appointed the occupant of the position of human resources manager as the person responsible for
disclosures of public interest information; and

» developed and published procedures for public disclosures.

There were no public interest disclosures received in the reporting year.

Risk Management 
This year nationally accredited visitor risk management training was provided by the Department of
Conservation and Land Management to Authority staff with responsibilities in this area. The training
also included an overview of risk management by RiskCover and the Authority’s risk management
program. Risk management plans were introduced for major events within the Rottnest Reserve.

Members of the Winnits Club assisted with a survey of the coastal risk signs. This information has been
incorporated into a database, including the GPS location of each sign.

Additionally, significant incidents and litigation matters are reported to each Board meeting.

The Finance and Audit Committee functions as the Authority’s risk management committee. The
Authority has put in place policies and procedures in keeping with AS/NZS 4360:1999, to manage the
diverse risks associated with management of the Authority, including visitor risk management.

In 2003/2004 the Authority undertook assessments of 12 strategic risks. Audits and risk treatment
plans, for each risk identified, were provided to the Finance and Audit Committee in accordance with
an approved timeframe. Procedures for management of operational risks were developed and
assessments of several risks completed.

The Rottnest Island Taskforce highlighted the need for the Authority to review the existing risk
management system to address concerns that:

» the risk register provides for an assessment of controls rather than providing details of the controls;
» risk management staff are required to audit the controls assessed (this should be done

independently);
» inherent risks are currently only reviewed every 5 years; and 
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» risks relating to legal compliance, completeness of revenue and human resources do not appear to
be considered.

Equal Employment Opportunity
The Authority continues to exceed the Government’s equity index target of 59, for the improved
distribution of women at all levels of the workforce with an equity index of 83.  Women comprise 51%
of the workforce.

An equity index of 100 shows group members are equitably distributed across the salary levels.  

The Authority is well represented by women at the SES level (33%). The Government target is 25%. In
the first 3 tiers of management, 55% of line management positions are held by women (the
government target is 37%).

Disability Services Plan Outcomes
The Rottnest Island Authority provided facilities and services as per its Disability Service Plan 2002-2007.

The North Thomson ramp for water access was completed this year. The ramp, built in accordance with
the principles of universal access, finishes this beach recreation area. A nearby beach shelter was refitted
the previous year to ensure easier access.

The RIA’s new railway car, the Captain Hussey, was launched this year with the capacity for 2
wheelchairs.

Free-of-charge push wheelchairs which are available from the Accommodation Office continued to be
in demand for visitors.

Plan for Young People
Rottnest Island is a significant recreational destination for young people. The Authority plans activities
to encourage an appreciation of the Island and to ensure a safe environment when participating in
celebrations on the Island. 

Leavers’ week celebrations are an important culmination of school life for many young people. The
Authority recognises this and continually plans appropriately for the event. This year a new initiative to
give leavers their own area of accommodation was extremely successful. Leavers celebrated in safety
and were provided with entertainment and personal support through volunteer outlets. A no glass
policy significantly reduced the number of injuries in comparison to the previous year.

The environmental education program run by the Authority’s education services is linked to the
Department of Education and Training’s Curriculum Framework. The activities offered on the program
encourage active involvement and hands on learning for younger students in accordance with the
needs of the participating students.

Language Services
Signs on the Island display international symbols and bilingual staff provide language services to visitors.
To assist visitors of non-English speaking background, staff name badges signify any second languages
spoken. An information brochure on safety on the Island is also produced in multiple languages.

Waste Paper Recycling
Waste paper from the Authority’s Island offices and Fremantle office is collected by Western Recycling
Pty Ltd.
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Electoral Act 1907
In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, the Rottnest
Island Authority incurred expenditure during the period 1 July 2003 to 30 June 2004 on the following:

Advertising Agencies Amount

303 Advertising:
» printing $118,045
» signage 14,845
» advertising 1,609
Total Amount $134,499

Market Research Agencies Amount

Market Equity $34,107
Total $34,107

Polling Organisations Amount
Nil

Direct Mail Organisations Amount
Nil

Media Advertising Organisations Amount

Marketforce Productions $19,846
Total $19,846  

Staffing and Employee Relations

Staffing
The Authority met its obligations in 2003/2004 to maintain its staffing level from the previous year, and
in fact has reduced its average staffing level from 108 FTE’s to 106 FTE’s.

The Department of the Premier and Cabinet determines the methodology for reporting FTE’s for whole
of government reporting. The methodology to determine the annual average staffing level is the
aggregate of full time equivalents (FTE) paid on the last pay in September, December, March and June
of each year, divided by four. All values are rounded to the nearest whole number.

Full-Time Equivalent Staff Positions (FTE)   (ie: Annual Average Staffing Level)

Category 2002/03 2003/04

Full-time Permanent 82.00 75.00

Part-time Permanent 5.30 5.30

Full-time Contract of Service 15.00 8.00

Part-time Contract of Service 5.20 11.70

Full time secondment .5 0

Hotel employees 0 6.00

Total 108.00 106.00
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The Authority resumed direct management of the Rottnest Hotel on 1 April 2004, consequently
accounting for an actual staffing level as at 30 June 2004 of 114 FTE (of which 23 were employed at
the Hotel), compared to 102 FTE as at 30 June 2003. 

Actual and Average Staffing Levels For the Authority and the Hotel

30 June 2003 2002/03 Annual 30 June 2004 2003/04 Annual
Actual Average Staffing Actual Average Staffing

Level Level

Authority 102 108 91 100 

Hotel N/A N/A 23 6

Total 102 108 114 106

The Chief Executive Officer and the Members of the Authority are continuing to review the minimum
ongoing staffing level and the mix of full-time and part-time employment and seasonal employment.
This is in line with the Taskforce’s recommendation that the organisational structure of the Authority is
examined as a priority, giving particular attention to areas of duplication and opportunities to improve
the flexibility of the workforce.

Industrial Agreements
During 2003/04 the Authority concluded negotiations with the Australian Municipal Administrative and
Clerical Services Union and the Western Australian Shire Councils, Municipal Road Boards, Health
Boards, Parks, Cemeteries and Racecourses, Public Authorities Water Boards Union for a new Enterprise
Agreement for the Authority’s Coach Captains. That Agreement is awaiting registration in the
Australian Industrial Relations Commission.

Occupational Health and Safety
In accordance with the Authority’s focus on providing a safe and healthy workplace, Occupational
Services continue to provide an employee assistance program for all employees and their immediate
family. The assistance takes the form of a range of confidential personal services and includes
counselling for financial or emotional matters. Staff who are in need of support may contact
Occupational Services or may be referred by the Authority.

Workers Compensation and Rehabilitation

Category 2002/03 2003/04

Number of injuries causing lost-time 9 1

Number of workers’ compensation claims 12 5

Total days lost 426 20

Average duration (days) 47 20

Rehabilitation success rate 0% 0%
Note: Rehabilitation success rate: Two employees are currently on rehabilitation programs with registered rehabilitation providers. Until that
rehabilitation is completed the success rate will appear as 0%. This has also impacted on total days lost.
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Public Sector Standards
The Authority has complied with the Public Sector Standards in Human Resources Management, the
Western Australian Public Sector Code of Ethics and the Authority’s Code of Conduct. There were no
breach of standard applications lodged in 2003/2004.

The application made for breach of standards review and the corresponding outcomes for the reporting
period are:

» Number lodged – nil
» Number of breaches found – n/a
» Number still under review – n/a

Statement of Compliance with Relevant Written Law

Enabling Legislation and Administration
The Rottnest Island Authority was established by the Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987 to control and
manage Rottnest Island in accordance with the Act and the Rottnest Island Regulations 1988.

45



Legislation Impacting on Rottnest Island Authority Activities
Rottnest Island Authority is required to comply with the following relevant written laws:

Western Australian Legislation:
Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972

Aboriginal Heritage Regulations 1974

Animal Welfare Act 2002

Bush Fires Act 1954

Bush Fires Regulations 1954

Business Names Act 1962

Civil Liability Act 2002

Commercial Tenancy (Retail Shops) Agreement Act 1985

Commercial Tenancy (Retail Shops) Agreement Regulations 1985

Competition Policy Reform (WA) Act 1996

Conservation and Land Management Act 1984

Dangerous Goods Safety Act 2004

Debits Tax Act 1990

Disability Services Act 1993

Disability Services Regulations 1995

Electoral Act 1907

Electricity Act 1945

Electricity Corporation Act 1994

Electronic Transactions Act 2003

Energy Operators (Powers) Act 1979

Environmental Protection Act 1986

Equal Opportunity Act 1984

Evidence Act 1906

Explosive and Dangerous Goods Act 1961

Fair Trading Act 1987

Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985

Fines Penalties and Infringement Notices Act 1994

Fish Resources Management Act 1994

Freedom of Information Act 1992

Freedom of Information Regulations1993

Gas Standards Act 1972

Government Employees Housing Act 1964

Government Employees Superannuation Act 1987

Health (Rottnest Island) By-laws 1989

Heritage of Western Australia Act 1990

Industrial Relations Act 1979
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Interpretation Act 1984

Jetties Act 1926

Labour Relations Reform Act 2002

Land Administration Act 1997

Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951

Limitation Act 1935

Liquor Licensing Act 1988

Long Service Leave Act 1958

Marine and Harbours Act 1981

Metropolitan Water Supply, Sewerage and Drainage Act 1909

Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993

Navigable Waters Regulations 1958

Occupational Health and Safety Act 1984

Occupier’s Liability Act 1985

Parliamentary Commissioner Act 1971

Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003

Public Sector Management Act 1994

Public and Bank Holidays Act 1974

Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987

Rottnest Island Regulations 1988

Salaries and Allowances Act 1975

Shipping and Pilotage Act 1967

Soil and Land Conservation Act 1945

Stamp Act 1921

State Records Act 2000

State Records (Consequential Provisions) Act 2000

State Supply Commission Act 1991

State Superannuation Act 2000

Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996

Superannuation and Family Benefits Act 1938

Treasurer’s Advance Authorisation Act 1996

Volunteers (Protection from Liability) Act 2002

Water and Rivers Commission Act 1995

Water Corporation Act 1995

Water Services Coordination Act 1995

Western Australian Marine Act 1982

Wildlife Conservation Act 1950

Workers’ Compensation & Rehabilitation Act 1981

Workplace Agreements Act 1993
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Commonwealth Legislation:
A New Tax System (Pay as you go) Act 1999

A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Regulations 1999

Australian Heritage Commission Act 1975

Copyright Act 1968

Disability Discrimination Act 1992

Electronic Transactions Act 1999

Environmental Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999

Fringe Benefits Tax Act 1986

Historic Shipwrecks Act 1976

Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 

Income Tax Assessment Act 1997

Lighthouses Act 1911

Native Title Act 1993

Privacy Act 1988

Racial Discrimination Act 1975

Sales Tax (Exemptions and Classifications) Act 1992

Sex Discrimination Act 1984

Trade Practices Act 1974

Workplace Relations Act 1996

Laurie O’Meara
Acting Chairman

Paolo Amaranti
Chief Executive Officer

31 August 2004
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Additional Information
Publications can be obtained from the Office of the Rottnest Island Authority, Level 1, E Shed, Victoria
Quay, Fremantle, WA. Those noted * are also available from www.rottnestisland.com.

Regular Publications
Rottnest Island Authority Annual Report*

Rottnest News*

Current RIA Brochures
Visitor Information 2003/2004*

Marine & Boating Guide 2003/2004*

Events Calendar 2004

Rottnest News Spring 2003*

Rottnest News Summer 2004*

Leavers Week 2003: Crucial Knowledge

Education Services flyer

Seaweek 2004 flyer

Maps & Information Summer 2003/2004

Maps & Information Winter 2004*

Other RIA Publications
Rottnest Island Management Plan 2003 – 2008*

Safety Information for Visitors 

Coastal Hazards

A Guide to Safe Boating 

Wedding and Function Guide*

The Quokka 

A Guide to the Historic Buildings of the Thomson Bay Settlement

Signal Ridge, Wadjemup Hill

Older RIA Interpretative Publications still in distribution5

Rottnest Island Salt Lakes

Rottnest Island Fishes

Rottnest Island Cape Vlamingh Heritage Trail

Rottnest Island Oliver Hill Battery

5 These publications available from the RIA Visitor Centre, Cnr Henderson Ave and Colebatch Ave, Rottnest Island, WA.



The Rottnest Wrecks Heritage Trail

Rottnest Island Shells

Rottnest Island Oliver Hill Battery Heritage Trail

Rottnest Island Vlamingh Memorial Heritage Trail

Rottnest Island Vincent Way Heritage Trail

Rottnest Island Lighthouses

Rottnest Island Seagrasses

Rottnest Island Crustaceans 
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Appendix A
Rottnest Island Management Plan 2003-2008 Implementation Report 

As at 30th June 2004
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2 Department of Conservation and Land Management

3 Rottnest Island Environmental Advisory Committee
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- for commencement in 2003 Statement of progress as at to RIMP (See Taskforce 
30 June 2004 Recommendations following)

4 Rottnest Island Cultural Heritage Advisory Committee



57

301 atnemelpmidnapoleveD
eliforpehtesaercniotygetarts
-egatirehrofdnalsItsenttoRfo
sranimes,secnerefnocdessucof

.stnevegniniartdna

ehtgnitteS:sranimestsurTlanoitaN
ehtmorfsegaP-thgiartSdroceR

"dnalsItsenttoRfoyrotsiHecnefeD
–eltnamerFssertroF"dna)3002(
rediWanidnalsItsenttoRgnittuP

dnoceS.)4002enuJ("txetnoC
.dnalsIehtottisivyadasedulcni

ailartsuAsmuesuMlanoitaN
adedulcni3002niecnerefnoc
ecnerefnocrofruotecnerefnoc

&gniklawdesilaicepshtiw,setageled
.sruotsub

sruotsubdnagniklawdesilaicepS
egatireHnailartsuArofdetcudnoc

setageledgniteemslaiciffOdnasriahC
.)4002hcraM(

otseitinutroppognirolpxeyltnerruC
niseitivitcadnaseitilicafesitrevda

htiwgnikroW.snoitacilbupdesilaiceps
rofyrarenitipolevedotffatsegatireh

.AWfolicnuoCegatireH

decnemmoC

401 ecnahnednaniatniaM
foeerfrofseitinutroppo

egatirehdetcerid-fles,egrahc
tsenttoRnonoitaterpretni

.dnalsI

GdnaFrofslenapnoitaterpretnI
deniatbognidnuF.dellatsnisegattoc

.liartklawlliHrevilOecnemmocot
liartklaWyelkciBfoecnanetniaM

sgnidliubegatirehlareveS.nekatrednu
4002lirpAninoitcepsnirofdenepo

.syadilohloohcs

gniognO llahstnemnrevoGetatSehT.37
ecnemmocotnoillim1$edivorp

.skrownoitavresnocdnaegatireh

801 ecnahnednaniatniaM
lanigirobAhtiwspihsnoitaler

terpretnirehtrufotelpoep
foegatirehlanigirobAeht

.dnalsItsenttoR

htiwnosiaildnasgniteemdeunitnoC
CAGDIR 5.

gniognO

seitilicaFnoitaerceRdnayadiloH

311 laudividniehttsujdayllaunnA
1gnicnemmoceefnoissimda

.3002yluJ

desaercnieefnoissimdalaudividnI
tnemdnemA.3002yluJ1evitceffe

otstnemtsujda4002rofsnoitalugeR
31dettezageefnoissimdatludaeht

.4002enuJ

gniognO fonoitcudortnietagitsevnI.82
detimilnuswollatahtssaplaunna

.eefenorofssecca

Rec Year One Rottnest Island Status as at Rottnest Island Taskforce
No Recomendations Management Plan (RIMP) 30 June 2004 Recommendations - as related

- for commencement in 2003 Statement of progress as at to RIMP (See Taskforce 
30 June 2004 Recommendations following)

5 Rottnest Island Deaths Group Aboriginal Corporation
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Rec Year One Rottnest Island Status as at Rottnest Island Taskforce
No Recomendations Management Plan (RIMP) 30 June 2004 Recommendations - as related

- for commencement in 2003 Statement of progress as at to RIMP (See Taskforce 
30 June 2004 Recommendations following)

6 Western Australian Tourism Commission
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Rec Year One Rottnest Island Status as at Rottnest Island Taskforce
No Recomendations Management Plan (RIMP) 30 June 2004 Recommendations - as related

- for commencement in 2003 Statement of progress as at to RIMP (See Taskforce 
30 June 2004 Recommendations following)
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- for commencement in 2003 Statement of progress as at to RIMP (See Taskforce 
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- for commencement in 2003 Statement of progress as at to RIMP (See Taskforce 
30 June 2004 Recommendations following)
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7 Rottnest Island Marine Issues Advisory Committee
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No Recomendations Management Plan (RIMP) 30 June 2004 Recommendations - as related
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30 June 2004 Recommendations following)
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8 Rottnest Island Volunteer Guides Association

9 Rottnest Island Foundation



65

412 snoitalerecnahnednaniatniaM
sa,tsoPgnisruNehtneewteb
latipsoHeltnamerFehtfotrap

ehtdna,ecivreShtlaeHdna
.ytirohtuA

ycnegremElacoLnietapicitraP
-retnI.eettimmoCtnemeganaM

.stneveegralfonoitanidroocycnega

decnemmoC

512 ksiRs’ytirohtuAehtweiveR
.margorPtnemeganaM

gniniarTtnemeganaMksiRrotisiV
sksircigetartS.ffatsyekotdedivorp

hcaefostnemssessadnadeifitnedi
.nekatrednuylevissergorpgniebksir

sksirlanoitarepofotnemssessA
.decnemmoc

decnemmoC ksirrofytilibisnopseR.81
ehtotdessapebottnemeganam

dnaetarotceridsecivreSssenisuB
otmargorPtnemeganaMksireht

.deweivereb
tnemeganaMksiRehT.91

ebotytirohtuAehtfosessecorp
.yltnednepednidessessa

812 dnaninoitapicitrapniatniaM
ycnegremElacoLehtfotroppus

.eettimmoCtnemeganaM

ehtdednettaffatsytirohtuAruoF
tegduB.sgniteemeettimmocylhtnom

.dedivorptroppuslairatercesdna

gniognO

022 llaedargpuylevissergorP
ehtteemyehttahtossgnidliub

foedoCsgnidliuBtnerruc
nistnemeriuqerailartsuA

.sgnitarerifotdrager

snoitallatsnimralaekoms84eraerehT
forebmunA.detelpmocebot

retniwrofdennalperasnoitallatsni
foorsotsebsanasierehterehW.4002

denoptsopebyamnoitallatsnieht
.tnemecalperfoorlitnu

gniognO -5evisneherpmocapoleveD.97
.tnemhsibruferrofygetartsraey

rofrednetlanoitaneussI.08
.margorptnemhsibrufer

erutcurtsarfnIdnaseitilitU

122 stnalpnoitanilasedehtetarepO
foecruosyramirpehtsa

.retawelbatop

retawfo%1.17,4002/3002nI
s’dnalsIehtmorfdecudorp

.ytilicafnoitanilased

gniognO tnalpsisomsoesreverretawaeS.83
noitasilibatophtiwdettiforterebot

.stnalp

722 gnivas-retawllatsnioteunitnoC
noitadommoccanisecived

.stinu

nidellatsnierasecivedgnivasretaW
nospaT.skrowedargpugnirudstinu

wolf‘htiwdettiferadnalsIeht
sseleriuqeresehtsa,’sretcirtser
.secivedrehtonahtecnanetniam

gniognO -5evisneherpmocapoleveD.97
.tnemhsibruferrofygetartsraey

rofrednetlanoitaneussI.08
.margorptnemhsibrufer

132 natnemelpmidnapoleveD
otngiapmacssenerawa
morfsrotisivegaruocsid

dnaelbalcycer-nongnignirb
stcudorpdegakcapylevissecxe

.dnalsItsenttoRot

tsenttoRhtiwdengised’efilrofgaB‘
.yregamidnalsI

fotrapsadepolevedebotngiapmaC
ecruoseRdnaetsaWcigetartS

.nalPtnemeganaM

decnemmoC

232 ssenisubehthtiwkroW
ehtecuderotytinummoc

deilppusstcudorpfonoitroporp
.degakcapylevissecxeerahcihw

euqituoBcinaidnIdnaretsooRdeR
foruovafniesugabcitsalpdesaec

decudortnierotSlareneG.sgabrepap
.noitomorp’efilrofgaB‘eht

sgabcitsalpfonoitacidarE
dnaéfaCemoDotnidetaroprocni

foelohW.noitatnemucodesaelyrekaB
fotrapsayawrednutcejorpdnalsI

.ygetartStnemeganaMetsaW

gniognO

332 tnemeganametsawapoleveD
.dnalsItsenttoRrofnalp

ecruoseRdnaetsaWcigetartS
evaH.detelpmocnalPtnemeganaM

rofgninnalpdecnemmoc
.noitatnemelpmi

decnemmoC dnaetsaWcigetartSehT.95
ebnalPtnemeganaMecruoseR

052,338$fognidnufdnadetpoda
.noitatnemelpmirofdevorppaeb

Rec Year One Rottnest Island Status as at Rottnest Island Taskforce
No Recomendations Management Plan (RIMP) 30 June 2004 Recommendations - as related

- for commencement in 2003 Statement of progress as at to RIMP (See Taskforce 
30 June 2004 Recommendations following)



66

532 tMnoenibrutdniwatcurtsnoC
tcapmistirotinomdnalehcsreH

.ycneiciffedna

dedrawatcartnocoN.desolcsredneT
denimaxe-erebottcartnoC.etaad-ot

tsenttoRotecnereferralucitraphtiw
.snoitadnemmocerecrofksaTdnalsI

decnemmoC dednapxetcejorpenibrutdniW.13
leseiddaolwolowtedulcniot

.srotareneg

732 foecruosasaslenapralosesU
tsenttoRnorewopevitanretla

dnaelbissoperehw,dnalsI
.elbacitcarp

gnithgildnagnitaehretawralosemoS
.ecalpni

gninnalpnideredisnocralosfoesU
.ssecorp

gniognO

832 fostifenebehtetagitsevnI
,dnalsItsenttoRrofleseidoib

sanoitcudortnistiotweivahtiw
.dnalsIehtnoleufevitanretlana

.detelpmocyllufsseccuslairT
ytilibaliavalaicremmoclacolgnitiawA

..leseidoibfo

decnemmoC

142 evissapetairporppayolpmE
-ygrenerehtodnaygrene

wenllaniseigolonhcettneiciffe
rehtodnanoitadommocca

nodetcurtsnocsgnidliub
.dnalsItsenttoR

syaFdnahcaergnoLfotnemhsibrufeR
serifgol-sagfonoisulcnisetaroprocni

.snafgniliecdaehrevodna

gniognO roftseretnifosnoisserpxekeeS.49
msiruotocetcapmi-wolwen

nosmohThtuoSnitnempoleved
.aera

noitatnemelpmI

442 sadnemadnaweiveryllaunnA
dnalsItsenttoRehtetairporppa

.8891snoitalugeR

dnadepolevedmargorpnoitalsigel4002
tnacifingiS.decnemmocnoitatnemelpmi

desoporpnoitalsigelAIRfonoitacifidom
.tropeRecrofksaTni

gniognO

742 otstnemegnarratnemelpmI
foecnanetniamerusne

otnoitalerniytreporplautcelletni
.stcejorphcraeserdnalsItsenttoR

.deifitnediebotledomecitcarptseB toN
decnemmoc

842 morfgnidnufkeesoteunitnoC
gnidulcni,secruoslanretxe

,spihsrosnopsdnastnarglaiceps
.emocnitnemelppusot

tnargtseWseirettoL00051$deruceS
.lliHrevilOrof

dnatnempiuqeytefas,caidoZderuceS
dnacaidoZmorf0005$lanoitiddana

noitacilppatnarG.tsewtsaoC
.noitatilibaheryaBsyaFrofdettimbus

gniognO apolevedyletaidemmI.86
otFIRehthtiwecnaillacigetarts

tnargfonoitcarttaecnahne
elbitcuded-xatdnagnidnuf

.snoitanod
tnemnrevoGetatSehT.96

esohtotsdnufgnihctamsedivorp
-nonmorfFIRehtybdeniatbo

egatirehrofsecruostnemnrevog
aot,stcejorplatnemnorivnedna

.000,052$fomumixam

942 cilbupehtottroperyllaunnA
ehtnossergorpno

tsenttoRehtfonoitatnemelpmi
3002nalPtnemeganaMdnalsI

.8002–

launnAytirohtuAdnalsItsenttoR
dnocesehtsi4002/3002tropeR

.troperssergorp

gniognO nisnoitadnemmocernossergorP.9
eboteunitnocsnalPtnemeganaM
dna,tropeRlaunnAehtnidedulcni
oslasnalPtnemeganaMtneuqesbus

tonerewsevitaitinihcihwyfitnedi
.txenruccootsitahwdnadetelpmoc

Rec Year One Rottnest Island Status as at Rottnest Island Taskforce
No Recomendations Management Plan (RIMP) 30 June 2004 Recommendations - as related

- for commencement in 2003 Statement of progress as at to RIMP (See Taskforce 
30 June 2004 Recommendations following)



67

tnemeltteSdnagninoZevreseR
emehcSgninnalP

4 ehtfoyradnuobehtenifeD
smretnievreseRdnalsItsenttoR

gninoitisop-oegfoseiresafo
.stniopatad

ILODhtiwssergorpninoitatlusnoC 01

dnalsItsenttoRfoyradnuobetadpuot
.dradnats49ADGotevreseR

decnemmoC

5 dnalsItsenttoRehtdnemA
ehtrof"otesoprupevreseR

dnalsItsenttoRehtfoesoprup
."7891tcAytirohtuA

enuJ31dednemaesoprupevreseR
.3002

detelpmoC

8 senoZlairtserreTehttnemelpmI
–3trahCnidebircsedsa

nalPgninoZlairtserreT taht
,enoZtnemeltteSehtesirpmoc

sedoNytivitcA,enoZlarutaN
yraropmeTdnatnenamrePdna
senoZnoisulcxElatnemnorivnE
htiwecnadroccanieganamdna

dnaseitivitcA–1elbaT
ehtnidettimrepstnempoleved

lairtserreTdnalsItsenttoR
.senoZ

.ecalpnienoZlarutaNdnatnemeltteS
:yawrednusedoNytivitcAnokroW

langiSfotnemssessanoitavresnoc
skrowlaitrapdnadetelpmocegdiR

tsixeydaerlaseitilicaF.detnemelpmi
,.g.e;sedoNytivitcAforebmunata

hcaebdna,steliot,sngisnoitaterpretni
ylisaeeromotsrotisivgnilbanessecca

yraropmeT.saeraesehtssecca
decnefsatsixesenoznoisulcxe
dnasaeranoitarotserdnaldoow

yriafgnitsenrofserusolclanosaes
.deriuqersaputeserasnret

decnemmoC ehtrofytilibisnopseR.06
ssalCAehtfotnemeganam

si)aeratnemelttesfotsew(evreseR
othcaorppadegatsaniderrefsnart

.MLCD
ebevreseRssalCAnA.16

.dnalsItsenttoRnodemialcorp

11 atnemelpmidnapoleveD
.dnalsItsenttoRrofnalpegangis

dnalsInafotxetnocehtnidessessaeR
.ygetartSnoitacinummoCrotisiV

decnemmoC

21 atnemelpmidnapoleveD
ygetartstnemeganameniram

sseccafoytiuqesetomorptaht
ytilauqarofytinutroppodna

lanoitaercergnomaecneirepxe
,evreseReniraMehtfosresu
latnemnorivnes’tignitcetorp

ehthtiwnoitanidroocni,seulav
nidnaseirehsiFfotnemtrapeD
tnavelerehthtiwnoitatlusnoc

sredlohekats

GWSMMIRehtfosgniteemxiS 11 erew
laitnatsbuS.4002/3002nidleh

afotnempolevedehtdrawotssergorp
sahygetartStnemeganaMeniraM

.deveihcaneeb

decnemmoC

71 rofledomlautpecnocapoleveD
noitaterpretnitliub-esoprupa

.dnalsItsenttoRnoytilicaf

.desilanifledomlautpecnocroffeirB
polevedottcetihcrafotnemtnioppA

deyaledsawledomlautpecnoc
dnalsItsenttoRfonoitelpmocgnidnep

.troperecrofksaT
detaitinistpecnocwenfonoitarolpxE

.OECyb

decnemmoC

22 foytilibisaefehtetagitsevnI
dooflanoitiddanagnihsilbatse

laicremmoCehtniteltuo
eulavsedivorphcihw,tcnicerP

gnisilitusnoitpodoofyenomrof
nretseWgnitomorpdna

.ecudorpnailartsuA

.detanimretssecorptnempolevedeR
detaitinistpecnocwenfonoitarolpxE

.OECyb

decnemmoC

Rec Year Two Statement of progress as at Status as at Rottnest Island Taskforce
No Recomendations 30 June 2004 30 June 2004 Recommendations - as related

- for commencement in 2004 to RIMP 

10 Department of Land Information

11 Rottnest Island Marine Management Strategy Working Group
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No Recomendations 30 June 2004 30 June 2004 Recommendations - as related

- for commencement in 2004 to RIMP 

12 Rottnest Island Cultural Heritage Advisory Committee
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List of Rottnest Island Taskforce recommendations referred to in the
Rottnest Island Management Plan 2003-2008 Implementation Report.
Managing Rottnest

6. The Authority develops a clear business plan, covering at least the period of the current Management Plan.

9. Progress on recommendations in Management Plans continue to be included in the Annual Report, and subsequent Management
Plans also identify which initiatives were not completed and what is to occur next.

10. The Authority develops a comprehensive business plan following the Government’s consideration of the Taskforce’s recommendations.

12. The Call Centre facility be transferred to the Western Australian Tourism Commission’s WA Visitor Centre.

13. The Authority develops standardised commercial lease agreements with its lessees and deal with all lessees on a consistent basis.

14. The Authority makes provision in future leases for businesses to briefly close in the low season in order to undertake refurbishments.

18. The responsibility for risk management be passed to the Authority’s Business Services directorate and the Risk Management Program
be reviewed.

19. The Risk Management processes of the Authority be assessed independently.

20. In order to ensure strong internal controls and to improve governance, an Internal Audit Function which reports to the Audit
Committee be established.

Visitor Servicing

21. The Visitor Centre be co-located with Accommodation Services in the building that currently houses Accommodation Services.

22. The Authority introduces a staff development program which focuses primarily on customer service.

23. The Authority investigates the feasibility of introducing a Rotto Smart Card for the forthcoming summer season.

24. The booking system be centralised through the WA Visitor Centre and operators seeking to forward sell be required to book through
this service.

25. The Authority removes the ex-Transperth buses currently used for Bayseeker services and replace them with smaller units.

26. The Authority develops a traffic management plan consistent with the ethos of the Island.

28. The Authority investigates the introduction of an annual pass that allows families unlimited access to the Island for one fee.

29. The Authority considers entering with a private operator to take on the golf course on Rottnest Island as a potential business
opportunity.

30. The Authority investigates opportunities with the Rottnest Island Volunteer Guides Association (RIVGA) to allow for the RIVGA to
collect payment for tours.

Essential Services and Utilities.

Power

31. Wind Turbine

The introduction of a 600 kW wind turbine and control system should be extended to include two special Low Load Diesel (LLD)
generators and Dynamic Grid Interface technology. This has the potential to achieve an IRR of over 20%. Diesel savings in 2005 would
amount to $485,099 rising through to $765,675 in 2024. 

Estimated Cost: $4.1 million, of which up to $1.7 million can be sourced through RRPGP

Water

38. Seawater Reverse Osmosis Plant (SWRO)

Retrofit the SWRO plants with potabilisation plants. This will ensure a potable supply, independent of bore water blending and will
stop the existing corrosion of infrastructure.

Estimated Cost: $20,000

46. Wastewater

Provide wastewater peak period balancing storage. This will also accommodate short-term growth. It is also required as temporary
non-leaking storage for solids removed during plant wastewater treatment plant cleaning. 

Estimated Costs: $30,000 (design), $80,000 (capital), $10,000 pa thereafter

56. Bituminised Catchments

Remove the bituminised catchments at Mt Herschel. 

Estimated Cost: $140,000

57. Monitoring of Bore Fields

The bore field should be de-rated in accordance with the guidelines described in the Water Allocation Licensing Manual. Preparation
of associated regulatory documents is required. Estimated cost $50,000. Ongoing monitoring analysis and reporting is also required.

Estimated Cost: $10,000 per year

Waste Management

59. The Strategic Waste and Resource Management Plan be adopted by the Authority and funding of $833,250 be approved for the
implementation of the program outlined in the Plan.
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Environment And Heritage

60. Responsibility for the management of the A Class Reserve (west of the Settlement area) be transferred in a staged approach to the
Department of Conservation and Land Management (DCLM).

61. The Government proclaims the A Class Reserve on Rottnest Island (west of the Settlement area) a National Park in recognition of its
status as an environmental icon.

68. The Authority immediately develops a strategic alliance with the Rottnest Island Foundation to enhance attraction of grant funding
and tax-deductible donations to the Island.

69. The State Government provides matching funds to those obtained by the Foundation from non-government sources for heritage and
environmental projects on the Island, to a maximum of $250,000.

70. The Governor’s Residence be restored to its original heritage form as part of any future development at this site.

71. The Authority works with the Western Australian Museum to develop appropriate exhibits for the museum on Rottnest, and consider
the scope for cross-promotion.

72. The Authority brings forward the implementation of recommendations contained in the Management Plan in relation to heritage.

73. The State Government provides immediate funding of $1 million to commence heritage and conservation works.

74. The Authority investigates opportunities for generating further revenue through its heritage assets, including, for example, guided
internal tours of the lighthouses at Bathurst Point and Wadjemup Hill.

75. The Authority, in concert with tertiary institutions, seeks to identify areas where further research is critically required for evaluating the
sustainability of the Island.

76. The Authority assists in the extension of research undertaken by postgraduate students by providing information on such research
projects on the Authority website.

77. The Environmental Education Centre at Kingstown be retained and operated on a cost recovery basis.

Accommodation

78. Upgrades to the Accommodation at Fay’s and Longreach be undertaken immediately.

79. The Authority develops a comprehensive refurbishment strategy for the next five years.

80. The Authority issues a tender nationally for the refurbishment program.

81. Refurbishment planning be supported by market research to more accurately determine future needs of the client base.

83. The Authority exercises greater control over the numbers of guests staying in units.

84. The Authority introduces the taking of credit card imprints for all accommodation.

85. The Authority examines its pricing models for accommodation based on supply and demand and introduces appropriate yield
management practices.

86. The Authority works with the WA Tourism Commission and other bodies to market Rottnest more effectively, particularly in the low-
season period.

90. The Authority carry out an exercise, in conjunction with the businesses on the Island, to identify how many staff are required to live
on the Island, and how many could commute.

91. The Authority includes specific provisions in new and renegotiated leases to cover numbers of staff to be accommodated on the Island

92. The Authority explores opportunities for Kingstown to become a precinct for staff housing during peak times.

93. The Authority investigates the scope for public-private partnerships to finance an upgrade of the South Thomson area.

94. The Authority seek expressions of interest for a new low-impact ecotourism development in the South Thomson area.

Transport

95. The Authority issues tenders for the provision of ferry services which predetermine the number of services per day at a yield agreeable
to the Authority. This process will require appropriate scrutiny to ensure a competitive bidding process.

Boating Issues

99. The Mooring Trial System continue, and this be fully evaluated by the Authority prior to any further recommendations being made in
relation to the management of moorings.

100. The Authority evaluates ways to increase the availability of rental moorings on the Island.

101. The Authority undertakes a feasibility study to investigate the viability of a floating dock system to be located at South Thomson Bay.

102. The honorary bay ranger program be continued and expanded.

103. The Authority works more closely with the commercial/charter boat industry to ensure appropriate fees and charges are paid for
patrons of these services visiting the Rottnest reserve. 
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Part II



Certification Of Performance Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2004
We hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and
appropriate for assisting users to assess the Rottnest Island Authority’s performance, and fairly represent
the performance of the Rottnest Island Authority for the financial year ended 30 June 2004.

Laurie O’Meara
Acting Chairman

Mimi Secco
Member

31 August 2004
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Key Performance Indicators
The Rottnest Island Authority has one outcome for Government:

Provision of accessible recreational and holiday facilities, appropriate to the Island environment, for the
benefit of Western Australian families and other visitors, and conservation of the natural and cultural
values. 

To achieve this, the Authority has two outputs:

Provision of services to visitors. The Rottnest Island Authority provides and operates accessible
recreational and holiday facilities with particular regard to the needs of people normally resident in
Western Australia who visit or holiday on the Island as a family group.

Conservation of the natural and cultural environment. The Rottnest Island Authority maintains, protects,
restores and interprets the Island’s natural and cultural environment.

The Authority’s single outcome and two outputs are derived from the functions of the Authority as
established by the Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987.

The Authority’s key performance indicators will be reviewed in 2004/2005 to ensure that they are
relevant and appropriate in the light of changes arising from implementation of the Rottnest Island
Taskforce report Open for Business: A sustainable future for Rottnest.

1. Effectiveness Indicators
Customers’ perceptions of their holiday experience on Rottnest Island and the way in which the
Authority manages the Island’s natural and built environment are indicators of the effectiveness of the
Authority’s efforts to achieve its outcome for Government.

Effectiveness is measured, in part, by a telephone-based customer satisfaction survey of visitors to
Rottnest Island during the reporting year. In 2002/2003 the survey methodology was revised and the
sample from which visitors are selected expanded. As a consequence the customer satisfaction results
reported are not comparable with those prior to 2002/2003.

An independent research organisation is contracted to survey a random sample of visitors (387
accommodation users, 202 day visitors and 100 private boat owners) to provide customer ratings on
satisfaction with recreational and holiday facilities and services. The sample comprised 689 interviews
from an estimated population of 488,000 visitors (338,389 by ferry/air and an estimated 150,000 by
private/charter recreational vessels). This provides a confidence level of 95 percent on estimates of 50
percent with a sampling error of +/- 3.7 percent. The overall response rate was 75 percent. The lower
response rate compared to 2002/2003 (91 percent) is possibly due to the increased length of the survey
(12 minutes) in 2003/2004 compared to 5 minutes in 2002/2003 (8 minutes for accommodated
visitors).

Some 72 percent of visitors surveyed were from the Perth metropolitan area, 12 percent from elsewhere
in Western Australia with the remainder from interstate (14 percent) or overseas (two percent). This year
the survey was conducted in three stages throughout the year.  Respondents were asked to rate facilities
and services on Rottnest Island in three key areas:

» accommodation (used by visitors who stay overnight); 
» recreation (available to visitors who come for the day, who stay overnight and boat owners); and
» overall satisfaction with recreational and holiday facilities and services.

Targets have been set for levels of visitor satisfaction with recreational and holiday facilities and services. 
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Monitoring is also undertaken to ensure that the facilities and services provided are appropriate to the
environment. Appropriateness of facilities and services requires, amongst other strategies, management
and monitoring of visitor impact on the Island’s environment. Appropriateness of services and facilities
to the Rottnest Island environment is measured through:

» water consumption; and
» marine water quality.

Conservation of the natural and built environment is assessed in three key areas:

» fauna biodiversity;
» revegetation; and
» built heritage.

1.1 Visitor Satisfaction with Recreational and Holiday Facilities and Services Provided on
Rottnest Island

During the telephone survey visitors were asked a series of questions including:

» Satisfaction with recreational facilities and services;
» Satisfaction with Rottnest Island Authority accommodation; and
» Satisfaction with recreational and holiday services and facilities 

To ensure that the visitor interviewed understood what comprised recreational facilities and services and
accommodation the questionnaire required ratings on a number of aspects of each prior to asking
visitors to rate their satisfaction overall for recreational facilities or accommodation. The question in
relation to overall satisfaction was asked at the end of the questionnaire giving visitors the opportunity
to review all aspects of their stay on the Island through responding to the previous questions.

Visitors were asked to rate their satisfaction with various aspects of the recreational facilities and
services provided on Rottnest Island.  They were then asked to rate their satisfaction overall.

Visitor satisfaction with recreational facilities and services

Customer rating 2002/03 2003/04

Net satisfied 84% 86%

Very satisfied 31% 37%

Satisfied 53% 49%

Neither 13% 10%

Dissatisfied 2% 3%

Very dissatisfied 1% 1%

Net dissatisfied 3% 4%

100% 100%
Source: independent survey conducted by Market Equity1 (Sampling error +/- 3.7 percent. Error rate at 95 percent confidence level on
estimates of 50 percent).  Note: percentage results allow for rounding

The majority of visitors (86 percent) said that they were satisfied or very satisfied overall with the
facilities and services provided on Rottnest Island.  The highest ratings of satisfaction were given for bus
services and visitor information services.  Overall satisfaction with the facilities and services is steady in
comparison with last year.  Several aspects were rated more highly this year, eg, bus services, beach
access, waste management and bike hire.

1 Market Equity Evaluating the Rottnest Island Experience 2003/2004 July 2004



The target for visitor satisfaction with recreational facilities and services in 2003/2004 was 85 percent
net satisfied.  The target has been revised to 90 percent net satisfied for 2004/2005, as the Authority
is working to improve services and facilities for visitors.

Visitors who stayed overnight in Authority accommodation were asked to rate various aspects of their
accommodation.  A composite measure was calculated as a weighted average of ratings given for each
aspect of accommodation measured.

Visitor satisfaction with Rottnest Island Authority accommodation

Customer rating 2002/03 2003/04

Net satisfied 56% 65%

Very satisfied 21% 27%

Satisfied 35% 38%

Neither 27% 18%

Dissatisfied 11% 12%

Very dissatisfied 6% 5%

Net dissatisfied 18% 17%

100% 100%
Source: independent survey conducted by Market Equity (Sampling error +/-4.9 percent. Error rate at 95 percent confidence level on estimates
of 50 percent).  Note: percentage results allow for rounding

Visitor satisfaction with every aspect of accommodation has increased in comparison to last year.  This
improvement is statistically significant compared to 2002/2003. Satisfaction with linen/bedding and
furniture/fittings remains less positive than other accommodation aspects.

The target for visitor satisfaction with Rottnest Island accommodation is 85%.  The Authority revised
this target upward from 60% during the financial year.

Towards the end of the telephone survey visitors were asked to rate their overall satisfaction with the
recreational and holiday services and facilities on Rottnest Island.  This has been reported as a
percentage of visitors who gave a satisfied rating of 4 or 5 out of 5.

Overall visitor satisfaction with recreational and holiday services 
and facilities on Rottnest Island

Customer rating 2002/03 2003/04

Net satisfied 81% 88%

Very satisfied 30% 40%

Satisfied 51% 48%

Neither 16% 8%

Dissatisfied 2% 3%

Very dissatisfied 1% 1%

Net dissatisfied 3% 4%

100% 100%  
Source: independent survey conducted by Market Equity (Sampling error +/-3.7 percent. Error rate at 95 percent confidence level on estimates
of 50 percent).  Note: percentage results allow for rounding

Overall, 88 percent of visitors reported being satisfied or very satisfied with the recreational and holiday
services on Rottnest Island.  Some four percent of visitors reported being dissatisfied overall.  This
resulted in a mean overall satisfaction rating of 4.23 out of 5. This improvement is statistically significant
compared to 2002/2003. 
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The target for overall visitor satisfaction with visitor satisfaction with recreational and holiday services
and facilities is 85 percent net satisfied. The target has been revised to 90% net satisfied for 2004/2005,
as the Authority is looking to improve visitor services and facilities.

1.2 Access for Western Australian Families
The Island is a favoured holiday and recreation destination for Western Australians.  The Government
is committed to ensuring it remains easily accessible, particularly to family groups and other residents
of the State.  The Authority works to ensure accessibility by offering a range of accommodation types
with rates suited to most holiday budgets.

This indicator compares the range of accommodation offered on the Island in comparison to the
amount Western Australians spend on overnight accommodation while travelling within Western
Australia.  It is a measure of the amount that Western Australians have chosen to spend on
accommodation, based on the standard of holiday they are seeking and their budget.

The comparison is made with data obtained from the National Visitor Survey 2003 (NVS) conducted by
the Bureau of Tourism Research (BTR).  The BTR interviewed Western Australians on their return from
their trip away during 2003 and obtained a range of information, including the amount that was spent
on accommodation.  They calculate that on average in 2003 Western Australians, who paid for their
overnight accommodation while away from home for holiday/leisure purposes, spent $59.93 per
person per night.

This is compared to the cost per bed for the range of accommodation offered by the Rottnest Island
Authority.  As the price per night decreases with the number of nights booked, comparison is provided
with four nights of accommodation, as this is the average length of time that accommodation was
booked in 2002/2003 (base year).  

As there was a price increase for Authority accommodation from 1 January 2004, the most recent peak
rate prices have been quoted.  It should be noted that a 20 percent discount operates in the winter
months with a further 20 percent discount offered to pensioners during this period. The price range of
accommodation offered by the Authority was $8.00 (tent site) to $48.44 (four bed refurbished cottage
with view) per bed per night.

Accessibility of Rottnest Island accommodation 

2001/02 2002/03 2003/04 Target

Percent of Authority accommodation  100% 100% 100% 80%
cheaper than average paid by Western 
Australians holidaying in Western
Australia

Price range of Authority $6.00 - $6.00 - $8.00 - -
accommodation (cost/bed/night) $37.60 $45.94* $48.44**

– 4 nights accommodation 

Average spent by Western Australians $64.12 $59.64 $59.93 -
(BTR National Visitor Survey) (2001) (2002) (2003)

*From 1 January 2003                     ** From 1 January 2004

There are a variety of operators offering full day tours to Rottnest Island.  In comparing accessibility
several different packaged destinations with similar components have been chosen on the mainland
and compared to full day tours of the Island.  Day tours of the Island remain at 74% of the cost of
similar tours elsewhere. 
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Accessibility of Rottnest Island tours 

1999/00 2000/01 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04 Target

Cost of day trip tour packages to the 75% 69% 66% 71% 74% <75%
Island as a percentage of the cost of 
other day tour packages from Perth 
(cost of Rottnest Island packages as a 
proportion of average of South-West 
packages) 

1.3 Water Consumption
On average Rottnest Island receives less rainfall than the Perth metropolitan area. Potable water is
sourced from the rainwater catchment area, groundwater bores and a desalination plant.

Abstraction of groundwater may have subsequent impacts on the water quality and habitat value for
fauna communities.  Two shallow unconfined aquifers (known as Oliver Hill and Wadjemup mounds)
are present on Rottnest Island.  These aquifers may feed some freshwater seepages along swamps and
lake edges. There are a number of salt lakes, swamps, and ephemeral freshwater pools located on the
eastern side of the Island.

The Island’s wetlands provide habitat and a water source for a range of flora and fauna. The lakes and
swamps of Rottnest Island are measured for conductivity (an indicator of salinity) on a monthly basis.
Peizometers have been installed at most lakes and swamps to measure the conductivity of the
freshwater seeps. Because of its relatively undisturbed state, Barker Swamp is representative of pre-
disturbance swamp conditions. It is also located on the edge of the Wadjemup mound and may be
affected by water abstraction from bores although the relationship is not well understood.

The Authority records the production rates of the three sources of water for human consumption.

Source of water abstraction

Source 2000/01 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04

Bores 58.22% 32.02% 21.44% 20.16%

Desalination plants 34.58% 56.12% 70.15% 71.21%

Water catchment 7.20% 11.86% 8.41% 8.63%

Total water consumed (kl) 144,557 123,281 122,923 114,001

Both water catchment and groundwater abstraction from the bore field over the Wadjemup mound
are rainfall dependent water sources. In 2000/2001 groundwater was the main source of potable
water. In 2003/2004, desalination was the primary source of potable water and will continue to be so
in the future.

1.4 Water Quality Within the Island’s Marine Environment
A key indicator of success in managing the impact of visitors on the Island’s natural environment is
compliance with swimming water health standards.

The Rottnest Island Authority uses the ANZECC (Australian and New Zealand Environment Conservation
Council) guidelines for primary contact to determine the quality of the marine environment around
Rottnest Island with respect to bacterial loads. The Authority coordinates a program of water sampling
from 11 locations.  As well as sampling for Thermotolerant coliforms and Enteroccci, details of boating
numbers, boat types, swimmers, weather conditions, and environmental factors are recorded at the
time of sampling.  

During 2003/2004 the marine monitoring program included an increase in the frequency of sampling
during high swimmer and boating activity periods (Christmas and New Year, Easter, Anzac Day and
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other public holidays) to determine the marine water quality at times of heavy usage. During 2003/2004
there were 23 sampling events which provided a total of 253 samples. 

Safe swimming water – Proportion of samples that met ANZECC guidelines

Indicator 2000/01 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04 Target  

Thermotolerant coliforms 97.65% 98.61% 99.17% 100.00% 100%

Enterococci 92.86% 89.58% 92.53% 96.84% 100%

In May 2004, four samples collected on the same day from bay waters provided high levels of
Enterococci. There had been a significant rain event the night before sampling and the high readings
were likely to be caused from contaminants being washed into marine waters. Increased bacterial
loading of water bodies after significant rain events is not uncommon. Other days of non-compliance
occurred in January and April (Easter). These are periods of high water-based activity.

1.5 Proportion of Rottnest Island Revegetated
Since European contact, clearing, cutting of trees for timber and firewood, grazing and frequent fires
have resulted in the loss of most of Rottnest Island’s woodlands. To address this degradation, the
Authority is implementing a 20-year Woodland Restoration Strategy.  Good establishment of planted
seedlings of the major species Callitris preissii and Melaleuca lanceolata is evident using high planting
densities. Regeneration of the Island’s woodland cover is an inherently lengthy process influenced by
factors such as climate, fire, and grazing by native fauna. The Woodland Restoration Strategy was
reviewed in 2003.

Every five years the Authority undertakes a major vegetation survey involving aerial photography and
ground truthing to assess the extent of vegetation groups and change. The survey was conducted in
2002/2003 and will be repeated in 2007/2008. The target is to achieve the return of 66 percent of 368
hectares outside the Settlement area to woodland by 2017/2018. This remains unchanged following
the review of the strategy.

Percentage of Island revegetated

1997/98 2002/03 2017/18 Target

16% 25% 66%  

The Authority planned to plant 55,000 seedlings in 2003/2004 and succeeded in planting 38,600. The
shortfall can be attributed to the late start to the 2004 program as planting can only commence after
the winter rains have started.  Approximately 4.5ha of new areas were planted. The trees were also
planted to infill areas previously revegetated, but affected by low rainfall and grazing by native fauna.
Planting will continue during the remainder of the 2004 winter. The target set for 2004/2005 is 48,000
seedlings.

1.6 Biodiversity of Terrestrial Vertebrate Fauna
Biodiversity is the variety of life forms, the genes they contain and the ecosystems they form. It is a
measure of the resilience of the environment to recover and cope with stress caused by stressors such
as drought and human induced habitat change. Measurement of biodiversity demonstrates the success
of the Authority’s management strategies in ameliorating threatening agents such as fire, pests, weeds,
human activity and disease, which can impact on the functioning of native ecosystems.

A simple measure of biodiversity is to count the number of species present, with the higher the number,
the greater the biodiversity.  The Authority conducts a survey of the Island’s vertebrate fauna every five
years to measure biodiversity. The data generated are used to determine trends and to guide planning
for responsible environmental management. 
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Five years is the minimum time frame over which to make meaningful measurements of biodiversity.
The target is to ensure that there is no loss of local, native vertebrate fauna species from Rottnest Island.

The first survey was carried out in 1997/1998. The faunal biodiversity was measured through a variety
of surveys undertaken between 1998 and 2003.

Additional reptile species were found in 2002/2003 as the surveys were more intensive, sampled more
sites and were undertaken at times of high reptile activity. These species had been previously recorded
on Rottnest Island and their sighting in the 2002/2003 surveys reconfirmed their presence.

The survey is programmed to be undertaken again in 2007/2008.

Number of species 1997/98 and 2002/03

1997/98 2002/03

Amphibians 3 3

Reptiles 10 15

Birds 71 82

Mammals 5 5

The target is no decrease in the number of fauna species native to Rottnest Island.

1.7 Conservation of Cultural Heritage
Rottnest Island has been identified as one of the most important heritage places in Australia. The
relative intactness of its buildings, sites and cultural landscape create a unique archive of early
settlement.  

The Heritage Council of Western Australia (HCWA) defines conservation as all the processes of looking
after a place to retain its cultural significance. This includes maintenance and may, according to
circumstances, include preservation, restoration, reconstruction and adaptation.  The Authority works
closely with the HCWA to ensure that buildings are appropriately conserved in accordance with the
Australian ICOMOS Charter (The Burra Charter) 1999.

The indicator for cultural heritage has been revised to reflect the condition of all 59 Rottnest Island sites
listed on the Heritage Council of Western Australia’s Register of Heritage Places. A heritage
maintenance checklist has been developed, based on a framework provided by the HCWA, to fully
assess the condition of each heritage asset. Each heritage asset is inspected and assessed by a suitably
qualified Rottnest Island Authority staff member, and then given overall rating of ‘good’, ‘fair’ or ‘poor’
(as defined by the HCWA).  The assets are described as ‘buildings’ or ‘other’.

A conservation plan determines the cultural significance of a heritage place and consequently develops
guidelines/policies for how the place should be conserved, maintained and developed. Generally
conservation plans should be reviewed at least every 10 years.

The targets set for 2003/2004 were met or exceeded.

Condition of State heritage registered buildings on Rottnest Island

Condition 2002/03 2003/04 Target

Good 33% 35% Heritage buildings in fair 

Fair 55% 56% or good condition: 90%

Poor 12% 9%
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Condition of other* State heritage registered structures and sites on Rottnest Island

Condition 2002/03 2003/04 Target

Good 25% 25% Other structures and sites in fair 

Fair 63% 63% or good condition: 88%

Poor 12% 12%
* ‘Other’ is intended to cover a miscellany of structures and sites, including ruins, walls, monuments, and military installations that could not
be described as buildings.

State heritage registered assets with conservation plans

Status of conservation plan 2002/03 2003/04 Target

In place 61% 64% Percent of heritage

In place but out-dated 0% 0% buildings, and other sites 

No plan 39% 36% and buildings with
conservation plans: 64%

2. Efficiency Indicators

Output One: Provision of Services to Visitors

2.1 Weighted Average Cost per Visitor Service Provided
The efficiency indicator for Output One relates outputs (number of services provided by the Authority)
to the level of input resources required (cost).

The services provided to visitors by the Authority vary in type, volume, and consumed resources.
Therefore, a weighted average cost methodology was used to determine the cost per service provided
to visitors.  The weighted averages used to calculate efficiency are derived from activity based costing
undertaken by the Authority in 1999/2000. Activity based costing examines the activities undertaken
within an organisation, and how they contribute to an output.  The activities that contribute to an
output are defined, and then all relevant costs of those activities are determined.  Costs are then
allocated to outputs.  To obtain the weightings for this indicator, activities were reviewed to determine
those which were direct services to visitors.

Three significant services were identified: number of nights of accommodation sold, number of train
and bus tickets sold, and number of moorings.

Costs for Output One were allocated to the three selected services based on the ratio of costs allocated
through the activity based costing exercise.  Weights were then determined for each service and this
was used to calculate the cost per service in the base year and ensuing years.  The weightings will be
reviewed every 5 years.

Weighted average cost per visitor service provided

1999/00 2000/01 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual 

Cost per service $29.34 $36.29 $37.62 $35.84 $32.18

Cost per service $35.42 $35.41 $32.62 $28.68
(adjusted for CPI)

Note:  Using the Perth CPI and 1999/00 as the base year.  The cost per service does not include the costs associated with the management of
the Rottnest Hotel. These costs have been included since 1 April 2004 only.

Expenditure was reduced on this output in 2003/2004 reflecting a more efficient management of
service provision to visitors.  In addition a number of minor works were deferred pending the report of
the Rottnest Island TaskForce.
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Output Two: Conservation of the Natural and Cultural Environment

2.2 Comparison of Total Operating Expenses as a Percentage of Conservation Assets
This is a measure of the Authority’s efficiency in managing the heritage and conservation assets. Total
operating costs are expressed as a percentage of the value of Rottnest Island’s conservation assets as at
30 June 2004.

Total operating expenses as a percentage of conservation assets

2000/01 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04
Actual Actual Actual Actual 

Total operating expenses 3.1% 4.0% 3.2% 4.3%
as a percentage of 
conservation assets 

Total operating expenses N/A N/A 3.0% 4.0%
as a percentage of 
conservation assets 
(including the marine 

portion of the Reserve)

Significant maintenance was carried out on a number of heritage sites in 2003/2004. In addition
investigative works to determine future management strategies for contaminated sites on the Island
were also undertaken, resulting in a higher expenditure on Output Two than in 2002/2003.

86



CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

The accompanying financial statements of the Rottnest Island Authority have been prepared in
compliance with the provisions of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 from proper
accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June
2004 and the financial position as at 30 June 2004.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars
included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

L O’Meara M Secco M Colyer
Acting Chairman Member Principal Accounting Officer

Dated: 31 August 2004
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

Note 2003/2004 2002/2003
$ $

REVENUE
Revenues from ordinary activities
Revenue from operating activities

Trading Profit 2 502,467 2,385,002
Goods and services 3 18,518,473 17,811,773
Commonwealth grants and contributions 4 7,270 12,500

Revenue from non-operating activities
Interest revenue 81,140 26,097
Other revenues from ordinary activities 6 1,121,383 384,606

Total revenues from ordinary activities 20,230,733 20,619,978

EXPENSES
Expenses from ordinary activities

Employee expenses 7 7,042,412 6,749,292
Supplies and services 8 10,099,532 11,866,072
Depreciation expense 9 3,392,739 3,169,754
Borrowing costs expense 10 367,159 409,404
Administration expenses 11 999,254 966,523
Accommodation expenses 12 140,734 142,331
Costs of disposal of non-current assets 5 34,028 47,499
Other expenses from ordinary activities 13 870,187 879,103

Total expenses from ordinary activities 22,946,045 24,229,978

Loss from ordinary activities before grants (2,715 ,312) (3,610,000)
and subsidies from State Government

Grants and subsidies from State Government 14 19,500 3,000
Initial recognition of assets not 15 0 5,731,320
previously recognised

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) (2,695,812) 2,124,320

Net increase in asset revaluation reserve 513,816 3,492,665
Total revenues, expenses and valuation 513,816 3,492,665
adjustments recognised directly in equity

Total changes in equity other than those (2,181,996) 5,616,985
resulting from transactions with 
WA State Government as owners

The Statement of Financial Performance should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2004

Note 2003/2004 2002/2003
$ $

Current Assets
Cash assets 26(a) 3,164,333 1,693,197
Restricted cash assets 26(a) 5,000 10,000
Inventories 16 176,308 235,352
Receivables 17 825,823 1,152,331
Other assets 18 231,487 232,436

Total Current Assets 4,402,951 3,323,316

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant, equipment & vehicles 19 94,026,754 95,258,053
Infrastructure 20 17,673,075 18,369,759

Total Non-Current Assets 111,699,829 113,627,812
Total Assets 116,102,780 116,951,128

Current Liabilities
Payables 21 300,316 565,491
Provisions 23 1,049,068 811,849
Other liabilities 24 4,887,054 6,139,507

Total Current Liabilities 6,236,438 7,516,847

Non-Current Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities 22 4,690,568 4,690,568
Provisions 23 524,306 672,249

Total Non-Current Liabilities 5,214,874 5,362,817
Total Liabilities 11,451,312 12,879,664
NET ASSETS 104,651,468 104,071,464

Equity 25
Contributed Equity 4,489,000 1,727,000
Reserves 89,523,261 89,009,445
Retained Profits 10,639,207 13,335,019

TOTAL EQUITY 104,651,468 104,071,464

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

Note 2003/2004 2002/2003
$ $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts

Sale of goods and services 502,467 2,384,235
Goods and services 18,592,135 17,658,329
Commonwealth grants and contributions 7,270 12,500
Interest Received 80,818 26,394
GST receipts on sales 2,369,188 2,248,570
Other receipts 711,618 321,924

Payments
Employee costs (7,211,347) (6,865,523)
Supplies & services (11,464,129) (12,573,805)
Borrowing costs (370,182) (420,017)
GST payments on purchases (1,594,562) (1,438,502)
GST payments to taxation authority (1,092,071) (809,716)
Other payments (863,192) (922,916)

Net cash provided by/(used in) 26(b) (331,987) (378,527)
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of non-current physical assets (983,377) (884,329)

Net cash provided by/(used in) (983,377) (884,329)
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of Borrowings 0 (295,631)

Net cash provided by (used in) 0 (295,631)
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Operating Grants & Subsidies 19,500 3,000
Equity contribution 2,762,000 1,727,000

Net cash provided by State Government 2,781,500 1,730,0000

NET increase/(decrease) in cash held 1,466,136 171,513

Cash assets at the beginning of the financial year 1,703,197 1,531,684
Cash assets at the end of the financial year 26(b) 3,169,333 1,703,197

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2004

1. Significant accounting policies
The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of the financial statements.
Unless otherwise stated these policies are consistent with those adopted in the preceding year.

General Statement
The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in
accordance with Accounting Standards, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, and Urgent Issues Group (UIG)
Consensus Views as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions.  Several of these are modified by the
Treasurer’s Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.  The Financial
Administration and Audit Act and the Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions governing the
preparation of financial statements and take precedence over Accounting Standards, Statements of
Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board, and UIG Consensus Views.  The modifications are intended to fulfil the requirements of general
application to the public sector, together with the need for greater disclosure and also to satisfy
accountability requirements.

If any such modification has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details
of that modification and, where practicable, the resulting financial effect, are disclosed in individual
notes to these financial statements.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost
convention, except for certain assets and liabilities which, as noted, are measured at fair value. 

(a) Grants and other Contributions Revenue
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions are recognised as revenue when the
Authority obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions.  Control is normally
obtained upon their receipt.

Contributions are recognised at their fair value.  Contributions of services are only recognised when
a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.

(b) Revenue Recognition
Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets and the rendering of services, is
recognised when the Authority has passed control of the goods or other assets or delivery of the
service to the customer.

(c) Acquisition of assets
The cost method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets.  Cost is measured as the fair
value of the assets given up or liabilities undertaken at the date of acquisition plus incidental costs
directly attributable to the acquisition.

Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised at their fair value
at the date of acquisition.

Assets costing less than $5,000 are expensed in the year of acquisition (other than where they form
part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).
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(d) Depreciation of non-current assets
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated
useful lives in a manner which reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line basis, using rates which are reviewed annually.
Depreciation rates used are as follows:

Buildings .............................................................................4%
Computers & Electronic Equipment...............................33.33%
Furniture............................................................................20%
Plant & Vehicles .....................................................From 0-25%
Leasehold Improvements....................................................20%
Infrastructure .........................................................From 1-11%

Works of art controlled by the agency are classified as heritage assets. They are anticipated to have
very long and indeterminate useful lives.  Their service potential has not, in any material sense,
been consumed during the reporting period.  As such, no amount for depreciation has been
recognised in respect of them.

The Oliver Hill Battery, which forms part of the Plant and Vehicles class, has been determined to
have similar characteristics to the Authority’s works of art with respect to useful life and service
potential.  

(e) Revaluation of Land, Buildings and Infrastructure
The Authority has a policy of revaluing land, buildings and infrastructure at fair value. The annual
revaluations of the Authority’s land and buildings undertaken by the Valuer General’s Office are
recognised in the financial statements. Infrastructure assets are being progressively revalued to fair
value under the transitional provisions in AASB 1041 (8.12)(b).   The valuations have been
undertaken by the Valuer General’s Office.  (See notes 19 and 20). 

(f) Leases
The Authority has entered into a number of operating lease agreements for buildings, motor
vehicles, office and other equipment, where the lessors effectively retain all of the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the items held under the operating leases.  Equal instalments of the
lease payments are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance over the lease term, as this
is representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.

(g) Cash
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash assets and restricted cash
assets net of outstanding bank overdrafts.  These include short-term deposits that are readily
convertible to cash on hand and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

(h) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Costs are assigned based by
the method most appropriate to each particular class of inventory, with the majority being valued
on a first in first out basis.  

(i) Receivables
Receivables are recognised as the amounts receivable and due for settlement no more than 30 days
from the date of recognition.

Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be
uncollectable are written off.  A provision for doubtful debts is raised where some doubt as to
collection exists.
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(j) Payables
Payables, including accruals not yet billed, are recognised when the Authority becomes obliged to
make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services.  Accounts Payable are
generally settled within 30 days.

(k) Interest-bearing liabilities
Loans from the Western Australian Treasury Corporation are recorded at an amount equal to the
net proceeds received.  Borrowing costs expense is recognised on an accrual basis.

(l) Employee benefits
Annual Leave
This benefit is recognised at the reporting date in respect of employees’ services up to that date
and is measured at the nominal amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Long Service Leave
The liability for long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date is
recognised in the provisions for employee benefits, and is measured at the nominal amounts
expected to be paid when the liability is settled.  The liability for long service leave expected to be
settled more than 12 months from the reporting date is recognised in the provisions for employee
benefits and is measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.  Consideration is given, when assessing
expected future payments, to expected future wage and salary levels including relevant on costs,
experience of employee departures and periods of service.  Expected future payments are
discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to
maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Time in Lieu Provision
The flexible working hours provisions of the Authority’s enterprise bargaining agreements
introduced the concept of annualised hours. At the end of the settlement period, when actual
hours worked exceed the average aggregate ordinary hours, the employee will be paid for the
excess hours, or the employee will take time in lieu at a mutually agreed time.  In each case the
amount due will be calculated at ordinary times rates.

Superannuation
Staff may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefits pension scheme now closed to new
members, or to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme, a defined benefit lump sum scheme now
also closed to new members.  All staff who do not contribute to either of these schemes become
non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme, an accumulation fund
complying with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration)
Act 1992.  All of these schemes are administered by the Government Employees Superannuation
Board (GESB).

The Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer benefit for employees who transferred to the Gold State
Superannuation Scheme are unfunded and the liability for future payments is provided for at
reporting date.

The liabilities for superannuation charges under the Gold State Superannuation Scheme and West
State Superannuation Scheme are extinguished by payment of employer contributions to the GESB.

The note disclosure required by paragraph 6.10 of AASB 1028 (being the employer’s share of the
difference between employees’ accrued superannuation benefits and the attributable net market
value of plan assets) has not been provided.  State scheme deficiencies are recognised by the State
in its whole of government reporting.  The GESB’s records are not structured to provide the
information for the Authority. Accordingly, deriving the information for the Authority is impractical
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under current arrangements, and thus any benefits thereof would be exceeded by the cost of
obtaining the information.

Employee benefit on-costs
Employee benefit on-costs, including payroll tax, are recognised and included in employee liabilities
and costs when the employee benefits to which they relate are recognised as liabilities and
expenses.

See notes 7 and 23.

(m) Accrued Salaries
Accrued salaries (refer note 24) represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the
financial year, as the end of the last pay period for that financial year does not coincide with the
end of the financial year.  The Authority considers the carrying amount approximates net fair value.

(n) Resources Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Value
Resources received free of charge or for nominal value which can be reliably measured are
recognised as revenues and as assets or expenses as appropriate at fair value.

(o) Segment Information
Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies of the entity as
disclosed in note 1 and the segment reporting Accounting Standard AASB 1005 “Segment
Reporting”.

Segment revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are allocated on the basis of direct attribution
and reasonable estimates of usage. 

Segment information has been disclosed by output.

(p) Comparative Figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified so as to be comparable with the figures
presented in the current financial year.

(q) Rounding of amounts
Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.
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2003/04 2002/03
$ $

2. Trading Profit
Sales 1,018,310 3,938,724
Cost of Sales:

Opening Inventory (235,352) (222,291)
Purchases (456,799) (1,566,783)

(692,151) (1,789,074)
Closing Inventory 176,308 235,352
Cost of Goods Sold (515,843) (1,553,722)
Trading Profit 502,467 2,385,002

3. Goods and Services
Accommodation Charges 8,549,011 8,563,077
Lease & Licence Revenue 2,159,302 1,555,604
Admission Fees 3,349,024 3,290,608
Facilities & Tours 3,021,070 2,931,261
Utility Charges 877,045 833,337
Housing Rentals 314,235 301,813
Commissions 248,786 336,073

18,518,473 17,811,773

4. Commonwealth grants and contributions
Coastcare Grants Program 7,270 12,500

7,270 12,500

5. Net profit/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets
Loss on Disposal of Non-Current Assets
Plant (22,438) (2,626)
Buildings (11,590) (44,873)
Net profit/(loss) (34,028) (47,499)

6. Other revenues from ordinary activities
Services received free of charge 448,058 37,836
Insurance recoveries 333,646 2,378
Contribution to Works 261,437 283,364
Miscellaneous 55,676 60,802
Assets received free of charge 22,205 0
Donations 361 226

1,121,383 384,606
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2003/04 2002/03
$ $

7. Employee expenses
Wages and salaries 5,186,174 4,894,223
Superannuation 517,501 450,035
Long service leave 121,064 194,898
Annual leave 337,571 322,109
Other related expenses (i) 880,102 888,027

7,042,412 6,749,292

(i) These employee expenses include superannuation, payroll tax, workers compensation insurance and other employment on-costs associated
with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability. The related on-costs liability is included in employee benefit liabilities at Note
23.

8. Supplies and Services
Consultants and contractors 8,579,411 10,815,430
Materials 107,039 110,473
Repairs and maintenance 898,109 370,939
Other 514,973 569,230

10,099,532 11,866,072

9. Depreciation expense
Buildings 1,256,014 1,101,653
Computers & Electronic 87,523 54,831
Furniture 58,398 97,201
Plant & Vehicles 314,045 270,982
Leasehold Improvements 15,498 15,498
Infrastructure 1,661,261 1,629,589

3,392,739 3,169,754

10. Borrowing cost expense
Interest Paid 357,750 399,727
Fees 9,409 9,677

367,159 409,404

11. Administration expenses
Communication 235,964 200,358
Consumables 192,114 180,896
Insurance 327,752 343,849
Other 243,424 241,420

999,254 966,523

12. Accommodation expenses
Lease rentals 105,090 97,369
Cleaning 20,219 18,497
Repairs & maintenance 1,748 10,540
Other 13,677 15,925

140,734 142,331  
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13. Other expenses from ordinary activities
Minor Works 608,534 676,331
Furniture, fittings & equipment replacement 150,006 179,917
Doubtful debts expense 6,995 158
Other 104,652 22,697

870,187 879,103

14. Grants and subsidies from Government
Fire and Emergency Services 16,500 0
Department of Fisheries 3,000 3,000

19,500 3,000

15. Initial recognition of assets not previously recognised
Marine Reserve 0 3,800,000
Main Jetty and Breakwater 0 1,931,320

0 5,731,320

16. Inventories

Inventories held for resale
Hotel Food & Beverage Stock 102,246 134,801
Visitors Centre Stock 69,466 75,014
Bike Hire Stock 4,596 6,524
Post Office 0 17,249
Kingstown Stock 0 1,764

176,308 235,352

17. Receivables
Current
Trade Debtors 1,512,534 1,788,931
GST Receivable 263,572 320,238
Provision for Doubtful Debts (950,283) (956,838)

825,823 1,152,331

Admission fees payable by the public are collected by ferry, plane and charter operators and
subsequently recovered from them by the Authority.

The Authority’s Provision for Doubtful Debts includes a sum of $846,482, with respect to admission fees
and other monies collected by one ferry operator, Banwell Pty Ltd, trading as Boat Torque Cruises. The
Crown State Solicitor, acting on the Authority’s behalf, has taken action to seek to recover the
unremitted admission fees.
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18. Other assets

Current
Prepayments 78,380 40,171
Other Debtors 150,898 190,378
Accrued Interest Receivable 2,209 1,887

231,487 232,436

19. Property, plant, equipment and vehicles

Land
At fair value (1) 66,400,000 66,400,000

Buildings
At cost 0 260,564
Accumulated depreciation 0 (41,817)
At fair value (1) 27,542,589 27,318,962
Accumulated depreciation (2,190,650) (1,126,137)

25,351,939 26,411,572

Computers & Electronic Equipment
At fair value (1) 264,889 172,862
Accumulated depreciation (142,354) (54,831)

122,535 118,031

Furniture
At cost 377,892 1,070,419
Accumulated depreciation (301,904) (936,033)

75,988 134,386

Plant & Vehicles
At cost 492,894 680,278
Accumulated depreciation (402,423) (449,386)
At fair value (1) 2,139,144 1,757,134
Accumulated depreciation (308,381) (179,346)

1,921,234 1,808,680

Leasehold Improvements
At cost 77,493 233,407
Accumulated depreciation (55,536) (195,952)

21,957 37,455

Works of Art
At fair value  (2) 23,095 23,095

Work Under Construction
At cost 110,006 324,834

94,026,754 95,258,053
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(1) The revaluation of land, buildings, computers and electronic equipment, and plant and vehicles was
performed as at 1 July 2002 in accordance with an independent valuation by the Valuer General’s
Office.  The primary valuation method to determine fair value was market comparison,
supplemented by the depreciated replacement cost method where there was insufficient market
data or equipment is of a specialised nature. 

(2) The 2 October 1998 valuation of the Rottnest Island artworks was an independent valuation
conducted by Phillips, Fine Art Valuers.  The valuation was performed on a market value basis.

The Authority has determined to report its works of art at fair value in accordance with the option
under AASB 1041 (para. 8.10). 

Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant, equipment and vehicles at the beginning and
end of the current financial year are set out below.

2003/04 Land Buildings Computers/ Furniture Plant/ Leasehold Works in Total
Electronic Vehicles Imprint Progress

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Carrying amount 66,400,000 26,411,572 118,031 134,386 1,831,775 37,455 324,834 95,258,053
at start of year  

Additions 434,927 92,027 449,037 (324,834) 651,157

Transfers (217,009) 110,006 (107,003)

Disposals (11,590) (22,438) (34,028)

Recoverable 
Amount (140,412) (140,412)
Write-Downs

Revaluation (9,947) (9,947)
Increments

Depreciation (1,115,602) (87,523) (58,398) (314,045) (15,498) (1,591,066)
expense

Carrying amount 66,400,000 25,351,939 122,535 75,988 1,944,329 21,957 110,006 94,026,754
at end of year 

2003/04 2002/03
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20. Infrastructure
At cost 3,422,760 3,432,744
Accumulated depreciation (2,314,637) (1,984,516)
At fair value (1) 18,926,689 18,497,782
Accumulated depreciation (2,513,248) (1,597,754)
Under construction 151,511 21,503

17,673,075 18,369,759

(1) The revaluation was performed as at 1 July 2002 in accordance with an independent valuation by
the Valuer General’s Office.  The primary valuation method to determine fair value was market
comparison, supplemented by the depreciated replacement cost method where there was
insufficient market data or equipment is of a specialised nature.
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Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of 
infrastructure at the beginning and end of
the current financial year are set out below:

Carrying amount at start of year 18,369,759
Additions 72,294
Transfers 368,520
Revaluation increments 523,763
Depreciation expense (1,661,261)
Carrying amount at end of year 17,673,075  

2003/04 2002/03
$ $

21. Payables
Trade payables 300,316 565,491

300,316 565,491

22. Interest-bearing liabilities
Non-current
Western Australian Treasury Corporation Loans 4,690,568 4,690,568

23. Provisions

Current
Annual leave 451,207 396,034
Long service leave 388,715 215,612
Time in lieu 26,917 52,297
Superannuation (ii) 42,202 40,097
Leave purchase 1,332 1,279
Employment on-costs (i) 138,695 106,530

1,049,068 811,849

Non-current
Long service leave 173,655 228,364
Superannuation (ii) 322,866 407,347
Employment on-costs (i) 27,785 36,538

524,306 672,249

(i) The settlement of annual, long service leave and time in lieu liabilities gives rise to the payment of
employment on-costs including superannuation, payroll tax and workers compensation premiums.
The liability for such on-costs is included here.  The associated expense is included under Other
related expenses (under Employee expenses) at Note 7.

(ii) The superannuation liability has been established from data supplied by the Government Employees
Superannuation Board.

The Authority considers the carrying amount of employee benefits approximates their net fair value.
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Employee Benefit Liabilities
The aggregate employee benefit liability recognised 
and included in the financial statement is as follows:
Provision for employee benefits:
Current 1,049,068 811,849
Non-current 524,306 672,249

1,573,374 1,484,098

24. Other liabilities
Current
Refundable deposits and bonds 3,419,274 3,667,735
Accrued expenses 1,234,177 2,190,068
Accrued salaries 109,966 154,050
Accrued interest 92,051 95,074
Unclaimed money 31,586 32,580

4,887,054 6,139,507

25. Equity
Contributed Equity
Opening balance 1,727,000 0
Contribution by State Government 2,762,000 1,727,000
Closing balance 4,489,000 1,727,000

Reserves
Asset Revaluation Reserve (i)
Opening balance 89,009,445 85,516,780
Net revaluation increments:
Land 0 2,600,000
Buildings (9,947) (1,733,478)
Computers & Electronic Equipment 0 31,440
Plant & Vehicles 0 (59,621)
Infrastructure 523,763 2,654,324
Closing balance 89,523,261 89,009,445

(i) The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets, as described in
accounting policy note 1 (e).

Retained profits
Opening balance 13,335,019 11,210,699
Net profit/(loss) (2,695,812) 2,124,320
Closing balance 10,639,207 13,335,019
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26. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

(a) Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown 
in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to 
the related items in the Statement of Financial 
Position as follows:
Cash assets 3,164,333 1,693,197
Restricted cash assets 5,000 10,000

3,169,333 1,703,197

Bank accounts are maintained at BankWest and the Commonwealth Bank and cash floats are carried within the business centres. One term
deposit of $5,000 held as a guarantee in relation to the TAB facility at the Hotel is considered to be a restricted cash asset.

(b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) from ordinary 
activities to net cash flows provided by/(used) 
in operating activities:
Profit/(Loss) from ordinary activities (2,695,812) 2,124,320
Non-cash items:
Depreciation expense 3,392,739 3,169,754
(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant & equipment 34,028 47,499
Doubtful debts expense 6,995 158
Grants and subsidies from Government (19,500) (3,000)
Initial recognition of assets not previously recognised 0 (5,731,320)

Increase/(decrease) in assets:
Receivables (iii) 276,397 (91,830)
Inventories 59,044 (7,069)
Other assets 952 (58,693)      

(Increase)/decrease in liabilities:
Payables (iii) (265,175) (542,266)
Provisions 89,276 (73,859)
Other Liabilities (1,252,452) 885,323

Net GST receipts/(payments) (i) (317,445) 352
Change in GST receivables/payables (ii) 358,966 (97,896)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (331,987) (378,527)

(i) This is the net GST paid/received, ie cash transactions
(ii) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables
(iii) Note that ATO receivable/payable in respect of GST and receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not

included in these items as they are not reconciling items
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27. Commitments for expenditure

(a) Capital expenditure commitments
Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted 
capital expenditure additional to the amounts reported 
in the financial statements, are payable as follows:
Within 1 year 2,618,000 158,000

The capital commitments include amounts for:
Buildings 2,618,000 53,000
Computers & Electronic 0 36,000
Plant & Vehicles 0 35,000
Infrastructure 0 34,000

2,618,000 158,000  

(b) Lease Commitments
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at 
the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, 
payable:

Within 1 year 239,230 351,650
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 241,738 361,212

480,968 712,862

Representing
Non-cancellable operating leases 480,968 712,862

Office accommodation is sublet from the Government Property Office and rent is payable monthly in
advance.  An option to renew the lease for five years, after an initial five year term, has been taken up.
The rental is subject to review on predetermined dates, based on CPI adjustment.

Office equipment is leased over four year terms with charges payable either quarterly or monthly in
advance.  Options exist to continue leasing beyond the expiry date or to purchase at residual value. 

28. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent Liabilities
In addition to the liabilities incorporated in the financial statements, the Authority has the following
contingent liabilities: 

(a) Litigation in progress 
The Authority is currently defending two Supreme Court Actions, for which there are no formally
quantified claims. 

(b) Native Title Claims
Rottnest Island is subject to one claim (known as the ‘Single Noongar Claim’) under the Native Title
Act 1993.  This claim is not currently registered on the Register of Native Title Claims.  Rottnest was
previously covered by the Combined Metropolitan Working Group claim, which was registered.
However, that claim was combined into the Single Noongar Claim on 9 October 2003. 

On 8 December 2003 Rottnest Island (both terrestrial and marine areas) was added to the Register
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of Aboriginal Sites (interim listing) under the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972 (WA).  This is in addition
to specific sites listed previously.  Formal advice has not been received as to whether the site has
been placed on the Register permanently.

It is not practicable to estimate the potential financial impact of this claim and site listings at this
point in time. 

(c) Treatment of asbestos materials 
The RIA has an ongoing management plan and in relation to the treatment of asbestos materials
on the Island, has recognised the necessity to continue to address this issue.

(d) Treatment of contaminated sites 
The RIA has an ongoing management plan to remediate contaminated sites as they are identified.

Contingent Assets
In addition to the assets incorporated in the financial statements, the Authority has the following
contingent assets.

(a) Litigation in progress
Proofs of debt have been lodged with the Boat Torque Group of Companies Administrator in
relation to unremitted Island admission fees and outstanding trading accounts. 

29. Events Occurring After Reporting Date
There are no events in particular that occurred after reporting date which  would materially affect the
financial statements.

30. Explanatory Statement

(i) Significant variations between actual revenues and expenditures for the financial year and
revenue and expenditure for the immediately preceding financial year
Details and reasons for significant variations between actual results with the corresponding items
of the preceding year are detailed below.  Significant variations are generally considered to be those
greater than 10% or $100,000.

2003/04 2002/03 Variance
$ $ $

Trading profit 502,467 2,385,002 1,882,535
Goods and services 18,518,473 17,811,773 706,700
Interest revenue 81,140 26,097 55,043
Other revenues from ordinary activities 1,121,383 384,606 736,777
Employee expenses 7,042,412 6,749,292 293,120
Supplies and services 10,099,532 11,866,072 1,766,540
Depreciation expense 3,392,739 3,169,754 222,985
Initial recognition of assets not  previously 0 5,731,320 5,731,320
recognised

Trading profit
The variance relates to the Hotel, which was under a lease management arrangement for eight months
of the year.  In 2002/03 the Hotel was run under a lease arrangement, whereby all transactions were
recorded in the Authority’s books.

Goods and services
The variance reflects additional revenue from mooring licences and business leases.

Interest revenue
The variance reflects a higher level of bank deposits.

105



Other revenues from ordinary activities
The variance reflects an increased level of works performed by other agencies on the Authority’s behalf
and the receipt of insurance recovery monies.

Employee expenses
The variance reflects additional costs following public sector salary increases and the employment costs
of Hotel staff for the final three months of the year.

Supplies and services
The variance relates to the Hotel, which was under a lease management arrangement for the first nine
months of the year.  In 2002/03 the Hotel was run under a lease arrangement, whereby all transactions
were recorded in the Authority’s books.

Depreciation expense
The variance reflects the effect of writing down assets so that they are not carried at amounts in excess
of their remaining service potential and the unforseen charge relating to the Main Jetty and Breakwater.

Initial recognition of assets not previously recognised
The variance relates to the Main Jetty and Breakwater and the Marine Reserve recognised in 2002/03.

(ii) Significant variations between estimates and actual revenues for the financial year 
Details and reasons for significant variations between estimates and actual results are detailed below.
Significant variations are generally considered to be those greater than 10% or $100,000.

2003/04 2002/03 Variance
$ $ $

Trading profit 218,250 502,467 284,217
Goods and services 19,198,745 18,518,473 680,272
Commonwealth grants and contributions 1,000,000 7,270 992,730
Interest revenue 24,000 81,140 57,140
Other revenues from ordinary activities 43,840 1,121,383 1,077,543
Employee expenses 6,703,030 7,042,412 339,382
Supplies and services 8,888,515 10,099,532 1,211,017
Depreciation expense 3,100,000 3,392,739 292,739
Administration expenses 1,334,990 999,254 335,736 
Other expenses from ordinary activities 1,294,400 870,187 424,213  

Trading profit
The variance reflects the inclusion of the Hotel as part of the Authority’s activities for the final three
months of the year.

Goods and services
The variance reflects lower than anticipated revenue from tourist facilities and Island admission fees.  

Commonwealth grants and contributions
The variance relates to funding for the Wind Turbine project, which is now expected to be received
during 2004-05.

Interest revenue
The variance reflects a higher level of bank deposits than anticipated. 

Other revenues from ordinary activities
The variance reflects the Main Roads Department contribution to road maintenance.
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Employee expenses
The variance reflects the employment costs of Hotel staff for the final three months of the year.

Supplies and services
The variance reflects maintenance expenditure that was covered by insurance recovery, costs associated
with the Hotel and unforseen expenditure in connection with the Facilities Management Agreement
and contractors, in providing for the maintenance of facilities and provision of utility services. 

Depreciation expense
The variance reflects the effect of writing down assets so that they are not carried at amounts in excess
of their remaining service potential and the unforseen charge relating to the Main Jetty and Breakwater.

Administration expenses
The variance relates to insurance and communication costs.

Other expenses from ordinary activities
The variance relates to necessary minor works expenditure.

31. Financial Instruments

(a) Interest Rate Risk Exposure
The following table details the Authority’s exposure to interest rate risk as at the reporting date:

Weighted
average Variable Fixed interest rate  Non Total
effective Interest rate maturities interest

interest rate bearing

1 year or 1 to 5 Over 5
less years years

% $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

30 June 2004

Financial Assets

Cash Floats & 
Operating Account 2,597 2,597

11am Account 4.47 572 572

Receivables 1,512 1,512

Other assets 2 2

572 4,111 4,683

Liabilities

Payables 300 300

Accrued Interest 92 92

Borrowings from WATC 7.40 1,875 2,055 760 4,690

1,875 2,055 760 392 5,082

30 June 2003

Financial assets 3.00 547 2,947 3,494

Financial liabilities 7.96 1,875 2,164 651 660 5,350

(b) Credit Risk Exposure
All financial assets are unsecured.

Amounts owing by other government agencies are guaranteed and therefore no credit risk exists in
respect of those amounts.  In respect of other financial assets the carrying amounts represent the
Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to those assets. 
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32. Remuneration of Members of the Accountable 
Authority and Senior Officers

Remuneration of Members of the Accountable 
Authority

The number of members of the Accountable Authority, 
whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation and other 
benefits for the financial year, fall within the 
following bands are: 
$
0 – 10,000 5 7

The total remuneration of the members of the 
Accountable Authority is: 28,912 28,912

The superannuation included here represents the 
superannuation expense incurred by the Authority 
in respect of members of the Accountable Authority.

No members of the Accountable Authority are 
members of the Pension Scheme.

Remuneration of Senior Officers
The number of Senior Officers, other than 
senior officers reported as members of the 
accountable authority, whose total of fees, 
salaries, superannuation and other benefits 
for the financial year, fall within the following 
bands are:
$
10,001 – 20,000 0 1
30,001 – 40,000 2 1
40,001 – 50,000 1 0
60,001 – 70,000 1 0
100,001 – 110,000 0 2
110,001 – 120,000 2 0
130,001 – 140,000 0 1
140,001 – 150,000 0 1
150,001 – 160,000 1 0
The total remuneration of senior officers is: 552,314 502,452

The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of Senior Officers other than
senior officers reported as members of the Accountable Authority.

One former Senior Officer is a member of the Pension Scheme.

33. Remuneration of Auditor
Remuneration to the Auditor General for the 
financial year is follows:
Auditing the accounts, financial statements and 
performance indicators 60,000 53,000
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34. Supplementary Information

Write-Offs approved by the Board
Bad Debts 12,807 83
Stock Write Off 2,894 2,272
Bikes Write Off 14,914 2,626

30,615 4,981

Cash Variances
Net cash (surplus)/shortage 4,337 1,415

35. Segment (Output) Information
Segment information has been disclosed by output. The two outputs of the Authority are:

Output 1: Provision of Services to Visitors
This output relates to the provision and operation of affordable recreational and holiday facilities with
particular regard for the needs of persons usually resident in the State, and who wish to visit or stay on
the Island as a family group. 

Output 2: Conservation of the Natural and Built Environment
This output relates to the maintenance and protection of the Island’s natural and built environment.

The Authority operates within one geographical segment (the Western Australian public sector).
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Services to Visitors Conservation of Consolidated  
Environment

2003/04 2002/03 2003/04 2002/03 2003/04 2002/03
$ $ $ $ $ $

REVENUE

Revenue from 
ordinary activities

Trading profit 502,467 2,385,002 502,467 2,385,002

Goods and services 18,459,997 17,752,248 58,476 59,525 18,518,473 17,811,773

Commonwealth grants 
and contributions 7,270 12,500 7,270 12,500

Interest revenue 81,140 26,097 81,140 26,097

Other revenues from 
ordinary activities 1,011,786 371,387 109,597 13,219 1,121,383 384,606

Total revenues from 
ordinary activities 20,055,390 20,534,734 175,343 85,244 20,230,733 20,619,978

EXPENSES

Expenses from 
ordinary activities

Employee expenses 5,932,312 5,675,110 1,110,100 1,074,182 7,042,412 6,749,292

Supplies & services 9,324,590 11,290,680 774,942 575,392 10,099,532 11,866,072

Depreciation expense 3,165,533 3,043,050 227,206 126,704 3,392,739 3,169,754

Borrowing costs expense 324,734 377,007 42,425 32,397 367,159 409,404

Administration expenses 782,323 827,440 216,931 139,083 999,254 966,523

Accommodation expenses 136,893 138,565 3,841 3,766 140,734 142,331

Costs of disposal of 
non-current assets 34,028 47,499 0 0 34,028 47,499

Other expenses from 
ordinary activities 568,800 808,742 301,387 70,361 870,187 879,103

Total expenses from 
ordinary activities 20,269,213 22,208,093 2,676,832 2,021,885 22,946,045 24,229,978

Profit from ordinary 
activities before grants 
and subsidies from 
Government (213,823) (1,673,359) (2,501,489) (1,936,641) (2,715,312) (3,610,000)

Grants and subsidies 
from Government 19,500 3,000 19,500 3,000

Initial recognition of assets 
not previously recognised 1,931,320 3,800,000 5,731,320

Net Profit/(Loss) (213,823) 257,961 (2,481,989) 1,866,359 (2,695,812) 2,124,320

Segment Assets 26,267,160 27,529,075 66,501,284 66,503,515 92,768,444 94,032,590
Unallocated assets 23,334,336 22,918,538

Total assets 116,102,780 116,951,128

Segment Liabilities 4,422,008 5,160,050 233,660 315,628 4,655,668 5,475,678
Unallocated liabilities 6,795,644 7,403,986

Total liabilities 11,451,312 12,879,664

Acquisition of property, 
plant, equipment and 
other non-current assets 788,167 353,416 23,596 76,279 811,763 0 429,695
Unallocated acquisitions 171,614 454,634

Total acquisitions 983,377 884,329

Non-cash expenses other 
than Depreciation 530,099 (24,110) 14,229 (11,755) 544,328 (35,865)



36. The Impact of Adopting International Accounting Standards
The Australian Accounting Standards Board has adopted the Standards of the International Accounting
Standards Board for application to reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005.  Accounting
Standard AASB 1 ‘First –time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards’ prescribes transitional provisions for first-time adopters.

AASB 1047 ‘Disclosing the Impacts of Adopting Australian Equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards’ requires financial reports to disclose information about the impacts of any
changes in accounting policies in the transition period leading up to the adoption date and will apply
for June 2004 reporting.

Management of Transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The Authority’s Principal Accounting Officer is managing the transition to Australian equivalents to
(IFRS) and has:

» identified the key differences in accounting policies, disclosures and presentation and the
consequential impacts and risks to the agency;

» assessed the changes required to financial management information systems and processes;

» identified the necessary staff skills and training requirements; and

» prepared a plan to convert accounting policies, financial management information systems and
processes so the Authority can account and report on the IFRS basis.

The project is on schedule with the design and documentation of IFRS financial management systems
and processes progressing concurrently with the preparation of an opening IFRS balance sheet in
accordance with AASB 1 as at 1 July 2004 (the date of transition to IFRS).

Key differences in accounting policies that are expected to arise from adopting Australian equivalents
to IFRS
The Authority has identified the following key differences:

» Accounting Standard AASB 136 116 Property, Plant and Equipment provides that where a class has
assets at cost and fair value, all assets in the class must be measured at fair value in the opening
balance sheet.  The Authority currently has assets in its Plant and Vehicles and Infrastructure classes
at cost and fair value and will therefore be required to revalue assets at cost within those classes to
fair value.  In addition, the Standard introduces changes to the recognition criteria with regard to
subsequent expenditure on an asset.  These changes may have some impact, particularly in relation
to the allocation of expenditures between maintenance and capital with respect to  those
Infrastructure assets that the Authority currently recognises on a “grouped basis”.  

» Accounting Standard AASB 119 Employee Benefit Obligations provides for the recognition,
measurement and disclosure of post-employment benefits such as superannuation.  The Authority
currently recognises unfunded liabilities for future payments with respect to the Pension Scheme, a
defined benefits pension scheme, and the Gold State Superannuation Scheme, a defined benefit
lump sum scheme.  It may be necessary to make an adjustment to the liability recognised following
application of the revised measurement criteria. 

» Accounting Standard AASB 114 Segment Reporting has been limited to for-profit entities by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board.  The classification of the Authority as a not-for-profit entity
for the purposes of compliance with IFRS means that it will not be required to continue to report
segment (output) information (note 35). 

Quantitative information relating to the above changes was not known or reliably estimable at the time
these financial statements were prepared. 
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Appendix A - Financial Estimates 2004/05
As required under Treasurer’s Instructions (TI 953) following are the annual estimates for the Authority
for the 2004/2005 financial year:

ROTTNEST ISLAND AUTHORITY

FINANCIAL ESTIMATES FOR 2004/2005

All Hotel All 2004-05 2004-05
Operations Operations Business Total
(excl Hotel) Initiatives

REVENUE
Revenues from 
ordinary activities
Revenue from 
operating activities
Trading Profit 260,000 2,335,000 2,595,000 0 2,595,000
Goods and services 18,850,000 560,000 19,410,000 250,000 19,660,000
Commonwealth grants 
and contributions 1,300,000 0 1,300,000 0 1,300,000

Revenue from 
non-operating activities
Interest revenue 75,000 0 75,000 0 75,000
Other revenues from 
ordinary activities 575,000 0 575,000 0 575,000
Total revenues from 
ordinary activities 21,060,000 2,895,000 23,955,000 250,000 24,205,000

EXPENSES
Expenses from 
ordinary activities
Employee expenses 7,120,000 1,600,000 8,720,000 160,000 8,880,000
Supplies and services 9,760,000 780,000 10,540,000 1,395,000 11,935,000
Depreciation expense 3,250,000 0 3,250,000 250,000 3,500,000
Borrowing costs expense 355,000 0 355,000 0 355,000
Administration expenses 1,165,000 180,000 1,345,000 50,000 1,395,000
Accommodation expenses 140,000 0 140,000 0 140,000
Other expenses from 
ordinary activities 710,000 265,000 975,000 1,019,000 1,994,000
Total expenses from 
ordinary activities 22,500,000 2,825,000 25,325,000 2,874,000 28,199,000

Loss from ordinary 
activities before grants 
and subsidies from 
Government (1,440,000) 70,000 (1,370,000) (2,624,000) (3,994,000)

Grants and subsidies from 
Government 0 265,000 265,000 2,681,000 2,946,000

NET PROFIT (1,440,000) 335,000 (1,105,000) 57,000 (1,048,000)


